
Annual Report 2023 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

St Kilda Hebrew Congregation Inc. 

Annual Report 
 

of the Board of Management 
for the year ending 31 March 2023 



2  Annual Report 2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
St Kilda Hebrew 

Congregation Incorporated 

Annual Report 
for the year ended 31 March 2023 

Contents 

PART A - ANNUAL REPORT 

Notice of meeting 3 
Form of appointment of proxy 3 
Nomination form 5 
Present and past officers 6 

Presidents 6 
Treasurers 6 
Vice Presidents 6 
Trustees/Governors 7 
Life Members 7 
Ministers 7 
Choirmasters 7 
Secretaries, Exec Dir, CEOs 7 

Board of Management 8 
Reports 

President 9 
Chief Executive Officer 10 
Senior Rabbi 11 
Assistant Minister 12 
Treasurer 13 
Library Fund 14 
Library Fund donors 14 
Cultural Fund 14 
Property 15 
Choir 16 
Protective services 16 
Events and achievements 17-19 

Board Meeting and attendances 20 
Minutes of the Annual General Meeting 20-22 
Member statistics 23 
Mazal Tovs 23 

Births 23 
Bar & Bat Mitzvahs 24 
Engagements 24 
Weddings 24 

Condolences 24 
Membership list 25-30 
Yom Tov service times 2023 31 
 

PART B - FINANCIAL REPORT  

Contents 33 
Income statement B2 
Balance Sheet B3 
Statement of changes in equity B4 
Cash flow statement B5 
Notes B6-13 
Statement by the Management Committee B14 



St Kilda Hebrew Congregation 3 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dear Member, 
 
NOTICE is hereby given, under Law 10.4(a), that the ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Congregation will be held on 
Monday, 14th August, 2023 in the Danglow Centre AND, if necessary, by remote technology with an opportunity for 
people to vote and speak remotely. The meeting will commence at 8:00pm. 
 
BUSINESS 

1. The confirmation of the Minutes of the last Annual General Meeting held on Monday, 29th August, 2022 (10.2(a)). 

2. The presentation and consideration of the Annual Report of the Board (10.2(b)). 

3. The presentation and consideration of the Statement of Accounts (10.2(b)). 

4. The election of office bearers and members of the Board (10.2(c)). 

5. The appointment of the Auditor (10.2(d)). 

6. The consideration of any motion of which not less than seven days’ notice in writing has been received (10.2(e)). 

7. General Business (10.2(f)). 

In accordance with Law 10.4(c) of the Law of the Congregation, nominations are hereby called for the following office 
bearers for the coming year: 

• President for 1-year term 
• Vice President for 1-year term 
• 5 members of the Board of Management for a 2-year term 
• 1 member of the Board of Management for a 1-year term 

The following members of the Board retire but are eligible for re-election: Saul Berman, Paulette Cherny OAM, George 
Erlichster, Melanie Super, Frank Tisher OAM. 

The following member of the Board resigned during her term: Rosalyn Gladwin. 

Anton Block AM, Tim Cohen, Sam Kagan and Rachelle Unreich have one further year to complete. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

• Annual Report without financial statement 
• Audited Financial Statement 
• Nomination form 
• Proxy form 

• Yom Tov service times 

 

NOTES: 

1. Only financial members of the Congregation are entitled to attend and vote. 

2. Each member entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint another member as his or her proxy. 

3. Only financial members can be appointed as proxies. 

4. Law 8.2 of the Laws of the Congregation states that “A Member is non-financial if he or she is in arrears of any 
amount to the Congregation”. 

5. All proxies are required to be in the hands of the Chief Executive Officer not less than 24 hours before the time of 
the meeting. 

6. All proxies must be in or to the effect of the attached form. 

7. Nominations close Thursday 27th July 2023, being eighteen days prior to the AGM (10.4(d)). 

 
 
Rabbi Ronnie Figdor OAM, Chief Executive Officer, St Kilda Hebrew Congregation Inc. 

  

https://mcusercontent.com/bba1a35b0bcbc1e9ef1d12692/files/91207bc2-646d-4d3d-3b32-7fb9818d4aed/Annual_Report_2023.pdf
https://mcusercontent.com/bba1a35b0bcbc1e9ef1d12692/files/0be7530c-7e99-4982-875f-980951abff67/ST_Kilda_Hebrew_Congregation_Inc._2023_Financial_statements_For_Signing.pdf
https://mcusercontent.com/bba1a35b0bcbc1e9ef1d12692/files/f766a6b3-8482-1dd4-74a2-190bf7e00ff1/Nomination_Form.pdf
https://mcusercontent.com/bba1a35b0bcbc1e9ef1d12692/files/36551854-7e1c-cd04-5ea9-6870ebb6cbe8/Form_of_Appointment_of_Proxy.pdf
https://mcusercontent.com/bba1a35b0bcbc1e9ef1d12692/files/637f627a-8326-73b0-8a9a-1fdc380bc5cb/Yom_Tov_service_times.pdf
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Form of Appointment of Proxy 

 

I  .............................................................................................................  

being a member of St Kilda Hebrew Congregation 
Incorporated 

HEREBY APPOINT  ..................................................................................  

of  ...........................................................................................................  

being a financial member* of the Congregation as my proxy to vote for 
me on my behalf at the meeting of members of the Congregation to 
be held on the fourteenth day of August 2023 and at any adjournment 
of that meeting. 

Unless altered in agenda item 4, *Law 8.2 of the Laws of the 
Congregation states that “A Member is non-financial if he or she is in 
arrears of any amount to the Congregation”. 

My proxy is authorised to vote in favour of/against, as he/she sees fit 
(tick one square) the resolution. 

Signed  ....................................................................................................  

Dated …........................ 2023 

 

Agenda Item 1 ❑For ❑Against ❑As he/she sees fit 

Agenda Item 2 ❑For ❑Against ❑As he/she sees fit 

Agenda Item 3 ❑For ❑Against ❑As he/she sees fit 

Agenda Item 4 ❑For ❑Against ❑As he/she sees fit 

Agenda Item 5 ❑For ❑Against ❑As he/she sees fit 

Agenda Item 6 ❑For ❑Against ❑As he/she sees fit 

Agenda Item 7 ❑For ❑Against ❑As he/she sees fit 

 
BUSINESS 
 
1. The confirmation of the Minutes of the last Annual General Meeting held on Monday, 29th August, 2022 (10.2(a)). 

2. The presentation and consideration of the Annual Report of the Board (10.2(b)). 

3. The presentation and consideration of the Statement of Accounts (10.2(b)). 

4. The election of office bearers and members of the Board (10.2(c)). 

5. The appointment of the Auditor (10.2(d)). 

6. The consideration of any motion of which not less than seven days’ notice in writing has been received (10.2(e)). 

7. General Business (10.2(f)). 
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Nomination Form - Nominations close Thursday 27th July 2023, being eighteen days prior to the AGM (10.4(d)) 
 
I hereby nominate myself  

for the position of ❑ President 
BLOCK LETTERS

 

❑ Vice President 

❑ Board member 2-year term (five vacancies) 

❑ Board member 1-year term (one vacancy) 

 
 

(Signature of Nominee)   

Please note persons accepting nomination must be financial members at the time of signing (Law 9.1(f)(i): Only persons 
who have been elected as Members under Law 4.1 for at least twelve months and are financial at the date of nomination 
and at the date of election are eligible for election to the Board.). Law 8.2 of the Laws of the Congregation states that 
“A Member is non-financial if he or she is in arrears of any amount to the Congregation”. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 
 

Nomination Form - Nominations close Thursday 27th July 2023, being eighteen days prior to the AGM (10.4(d)) 

 
I hereby nominate myself  

for the position of ❑ President 
BLOCK LETTERS

 

❑ Vice President 

❑ Board member 2-year term (five vacancies) 

❑ Board member 1-year term (one vacancy) 

 
 

(Signature of Nominee)   

Please note persons accepting nomination must be financial members at the time of signing (Law 9.1(f)(i): Only persons 
who have been elected as Members under Law 4.1 for at least twelve months and are financial at the date of nomination 
and at the date of election are eligible for election to the Board.). Law 8.2 of the Laws of the Congregation states that 
“A Member is non-financial if he or she is in arrears of any amount to the Congregation”. 

 

9.1(f)(ii): Only Members who have been Members of the Board for at least twelve 
months are eligible for the office of President or Vice President. 

9.1(f)(ii): Only Members who have been Members of the Board for at least twelve 
months are eligible for the office of President or Vice President. 
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Style comments: pre-nominal titles, such as Mr, Dr, Prof, etc. have not been listed, except for Rabbi, Rev. and Sir after knighthood was granted. AM, AO, MBE, 
JP and OAM appear whenever a person would presently be so designated, sometimes used in a period even prior to them being awarded.

Presidents 
1871–1873 Moritz Michaelis 
1873–1875 Isaac Jacobs 
1875–1877 Abraham Benjamin 
1877–1879 Isaac Jacobs 
1879–1881 Moritz Michaelis 
1881–1883 Isaac Hallenstein 
1883–1885 Abraham Benjamin 
1885–1887 Samuel De Beer 
1887–1889 Moritz Michaelis 
1889–1891 Morris Samuel JP 
1891–1892 Hyman Levinson 
1892–1893 Reuben Moss 
1892–1894 Wolf Barnet Isaacs 
1894–1896 Frederick David Michaelis 
1896–1898 Abraham Benjamin 
1898–1899 Reuben Hallenstein 
1899–1901 Wolf Barnet Isaacs 
1901–1903 Michel Isaacson 
1903–1905 Edward Jonas Michaelis 
1905–1907 Myer Zeltner 
1907–1909 Frederick David Michaelis 
1909–1911 Joseph Levi JP 
1911–1913 Edward Jonas Michaelis 
1913–1915 Henry Blashki 
1915–1917 Myer Zeltner 
1917–1919 Frederick David Michaelis 
1919–1921 Joseph Levi JP 
1919–1920 Frederick D Michaelis (acting) 
1920–1921 Myer Zeltner (acting) 
1921–1923 Michel Isaacson 
1923–1925 Sholom Judah Slutzkin 
1925–1927 Myer Zeltner 
1927–1929 Archie Reuben L Michaelis 
1929–1930 Joseph Levi JP 
1930–1932 Isaac Herbert Boas 
1932–1934 Reuben Hallenstein 
1934–1936 Isaac Herbert Boas 
1936–1938 Michel Isaacson 
1938–1940 Sholom Judah Slutzkin 
1940–1942 Louis Ellinson JP 
1942–1944 Michel Isaacson 
1944–1946 Henry Harris Eilenberg 
1946–1948 Raymond Ellinson 
1948–1949 Archie R L Michaelis MLA 
1949–1951 Frank Hubert Levy 
1951–1953 Louis Orbuck JP 
1953–1955 Leslie Cohen 
1955–1956 Frank Hubert Levy 
1956–1958 Leo Phillip Slutzkin 
1958–1960 Roy Michaelis 
1960–1962 Raymond Ellinson 
1962–1964 Anthony Jubilee Blashki SM JP 
1964–1965 Myer Harry Joske 
1965–1966 Leslie Cohen 
1966–1968 Joseph Wolfe Sackville 
1968–1969 Frank Dalbert Danglow JP 
1969–1970 Anthony Jubilee Blashki SM JP 
1970–1972 Ben Sternfeld OAM 
1972–1974 Maurice Saunders 
1974–1975 Lyle John Susman 
1975–1977 Noel Levin OAM 
1977–1979 Ben Sternfeld OAM 
1979–1980 Maurice Saunders 
1980–1982 David Isaac Hampel 
1982–1984 Michael Sydney Cohen OAM 

1984–1986 Geoffrey N Rose 
1986–1988 Peter L Cohen AM 
1988–1990 Graham Berkovitch 
1990–1992 Neville Sackville 
1992–1994 Mark Fagenblat 
1994–1996 Ephraim Ehrmann OAM 
1996–1998 Leonard Hyman Levy OAM 
1998–2000 John P Slutzkin 
2000–2002 David S Kolieb 
2002–2003 Graham Berkovitch 
2003–2005 Jeffrey Laurance Pura 
2005–2007 Alex Field 
2007–2009 Stephen C Pinch 
2009–2011 Philip Wolf Levy 
2011–2012 Peter L Cohen AM 

2012–2015 Anton Block AM 
2015–2017 George Erlichster 
2017–2019 David Casper 
2019–2020 Harold Sternfeld 
2020–2021 Anton Block AM 
2021–2022 Gerald Bullon 
2022   Janice Iloni-Furstenberg 
 
Treasurers 
1871–1873 Israel Bloomington 
1873–1875 Abraham Benjamin 
1875–1877 Moritz Michaelis 
1877–1879 Isaac Hallenstein 
1879–1881 Isaac Jacobs 
1881–1883 Abraham Benjamin 
1883–1885 Samuel De Beer 
1885–1887 S Buchholz 
1887–1888 M E Benjamin 
1888–1889 Morris Samuel JP 
1889–1891 Hyman Levinson 
1891–1892 Reuben Moss 
1892–1893 Wolf Barnet Isaacs 
1893–1894 Frederick David Michaelis 
1894–1896 Hyman Levinson 
1896–1897 Morris Samuel JP 
1897–1898 Reuben Hallenstein 
1898–1899 Wolf Barnet Isaacs 
1899–1901 Michel Isaacson 
1901–1903 Frederick David Michaelis 
1903–1905 Myer Zeltner 
1905–1906 M Levinson 
1906–1907 Frederick David Michaelis 
1907–1909 Joseph Levi JP 
1909–1911 Edward Jonas Michaelis 
1911–1913 Henry Blashki 
1913–1915 Myer Zeltner 
1915–1917 Frederick David Michaelis 
1917–1919 Joseph Levi JP 
1919–1921 Michel Isaacson 
1921–1923 Sholom Judah Slutzkin 
1923–1925 Myer Zeltner 
1925–1927 Archie Reuben L Michaelis 
1927–1929 Joseph Levi JP 
1930–1932 Reuben Hallenstein 
1932–1934 Isaac Herbert Boas 
1934–1936 Michel Isaacson 
1936–1938 Sholom Judah Slutzkin 
1943–1946 Henry Harris Eilenberg 
1946–1947 Raymond Ellinson 
1947–1948 Archie R L Michaelis MLA 
1948–1949 Frank Hubert Levy 

1949–1952 Louis Orbuck JP 
1952–1954 Leslie Cohen 
1954–1956 Sir Archie R L Michaelis 
1956–1958 Roy Michaelis 
1958–1960 Raymond Ellinson 
1960–1962 Anthony Jubilee Blashki SM JP 
1962–1965 M Harry Joske 
1965–1967 Joseph Wolfe Sackville 
1967–1968 Frank Dalbert Danglow 
1969–1970 Anthony J Blashki SM JP 
1970–1971 Ben Sternfeld OAM 
1971–1972 M Harry Joske 
1972–1973 Maurice Saunders 
1973–1974 Lyle John Susman 
1974–1976 Noel Levin OAM 
1976–1977 Anthony Jubilee Blashki SM JP 
1977–1978 Ben Sternfeld OAM 
1978–1979 Maurice Saunders 
1979–1981 David Isaac Hampel 
1981–1982 Michael S Cohen OAM 
1982–1983 Geoffrey N Rose 
1983–1984 Peter L Cohen AM 
1984–1986 Gerald Rose 
1986–1987 Neville Sackville 
1987–1988 David Isaac Hampel 
1988–1990 Barry Bloom 
1990–1992 Ephraim Ehrmann OAM 
1992–1994 Sam Fink 
1994–1996 John P Slutzkin 
1996–1997 Norman Same 
1997–2000 Steven Reichenberg 
2000–2001 Laurence Joseph 
2001–2004 Martin Block 
2004–2007 Brian Rudzki 
2007–2008 Max Hampel 
2008–2009 Jeffrey Degen 
2010–2012 Kenneth Fehily 
2012–2014 Martin Block 
2014–2020 (Mar) Janice Iloni-Furstenberg 
2020 (Apr)-2021 (Apr) Alexander Swire 
2021 (Apr)- 2021 Janice Iloni-Furstenberg 
2021-2023 Jay Greenberg 
 
Vice Presidents 
1983–1984 Geoffrey N Rose 
1984–1986 Peter L Cohen AM 
1986–1988 Graham Berkovitch 
1988–1990 Neville Sackville 
1990–1992 Mark Fagenblat 
1992–1994 Ephraim Ehrmann OAM 
1994–1996 Leonard Hyman Levy OAM 
1996–1998 John P Slutzkin 
1998–2000 David S Kolieb 
2000–2001 Leonard Hyman Levy OAM 
2001–2003 Jeffrey Laurance Pura 
2003–2005 Alex Field 
2005–2007 Stephen Pinch 
2007–2009 Philip Wolf Levy 
2009–2010 Graham Berkovitch 
2010–2011 Laurence Joseph 
2011–2012 Leonard Hyman Levy OAM 
2012–2015 George Erlichster 
2015–2017 David Casper 
2017–2019 Harold Sternfeld 
2019–2020 Gerald Bullon 
2020–2022 Janice Iloni-Furstenberg 
2022      Silviu Itescu 
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Style comments: pre-nominal titles, such as Mr, Dr, Prof, etc. have not been listed, except for Rabbi, Rev. and Sir after knighthood was granted. AM, AO, MBE, 

JP and OAM appear whenever a person would currently be so designated, sometimes used in a period even prior to them being awarded.

Trustees 
1871–1875 Israel Bloomington 
1871–1914 Isaac Jacobs 
1871–1915 Angel Ellis 
1875–1912 Abraham Benjamin 
1912–1944 Ernest N Michaelis 
1915–1945 Joseph Levi JP 
1916–1950 Myer Zeltner 
1945–1953 Sholom Judah Slutzkin 
1945–1975 Archie R L (later Sir) Michaelis 
1950–1955 Isaac Herbert Boas 
1954–1967 Louis Ellinson JP 
1957–1964 J Leon Jona 
1964–1976 Raymond Ellinson 
1968–1980 Frank Hubert Levy 
1975–1976 Leslie Cohen 
1976–1984 Leo Phillip Slutzkin 
1976–1984 Anthony Jubilee Blashki SM JP 
1980–1984 Joseph Wolfe Sackville 
 
Past Life Governors 
1984–1985 Frank Dalbert Danglow 
1984–1998 Leo Phillip Slutzkin 
1984–2005 Anthony Jubilee Blashki SM JP 
1984–2005 Joseph Wolfe Sackville 
2005–2006 David Isaac Hampel 
1985–2019 Ben Sternfeld OAM 
2007–2020 Geoffrey N Rose 
2020–2021 Neville Sackville 
Current Life Governors 
1999–present Noel Levin OAM 
2006–present Michael S Cohen OAM 
2020–present Graham Berkovitch 
2020–present Peter L Cohen AM 

 
Previous Life Members 
John L Isaacs (28th Aug 1988) 
G Q (Peter) Slutzkin (30th Aug 1989) 
Shirley Danglow (29th Aug 1990) 
Maurice M Saunders (19th Aug 1992) 
Harold Nathan BEM (23rd Aug 1994) 
Louis H Perlstein (3rd Sep 1996) 
Gertie Bartak (4th Sep 2000) 
Herschel Davis (5th Aug 2002) 
Arnold Erlanger AM (29th Aug 2005) 
Bernard Green (27th Aug 2007) 
Michael Oberman (25th Aug 2008) 
Current Life Members 
Suzie Brown OAM (8th Sep 1998) 
Carmel Bridgeman (31st Aug 2009) 
John P Slutzkin (27th Aug 2012) 
Leonard H Levy OAM (25th Aug 2014) 
Adrian Bartak OAM (24th Aug 2020) 
Gary Fabian (24th Aug 2020) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Chief Ministers 
1873–1904 Rev. Elias Blaubaum 
1905–1957 Rabbi Jacob Danglow MA 

VD OBE CMG 
1957–1959 Rabbi Jacob Danglow (acting) 
1959–1962 Rabbi Dr Simon Herman 
1963–1988 Rabbi Ronald Lubofksy AM 
1988–2011 Rabbi Philip Heilbrunn OAM 
2011–present Rabbi Yaakov Glasman AM 

 
Assistants/Readers/Ba’alei Koreh 
The following people served in any number of 
capacities assisting the Chief Minister as either 
Assistant Minister, Reader, Assistant, Ba’al 
Koreh or other titles as used from time to time, 
with the same titles referring to different roles at 
times. 

1871–1873 Nelson S Marks 
1886–1888 Rev Joseph Friedlander 
1888–1894 Joel Fredman 
1897–1915 Abraham Feuerman 
1915–1933 Rev Joel Falk 
 Rabbi Isaac Jacob Super 
1929–1932 Rabbi Lazarus Morris Goldman 
1932–1970 Rev Ephraim Kowadlo MBE 
 Emmanuel Sheink 
1943–1959 Rev Philip Berliner 
1959–1963 Rev Boris Belfer 
1970–1984 Rev (later Rabbi) Stephen Link 
1982–1986 David Lindell (casual) 
1983–1989 Rev (later Rabbi) Edward J Belfer 
1986–1989 Mark Symons 
1986–1994 David Lindell (permanent) 
1989–1996 Rev Harry Gluck 
1994–2008 David J Havin 
1996–present Rabbi Hillel Nagel 
2008–2010 Rabbi Ben-Zion Hain 
2010–2011 Avishai Josephsohn 

 

Choir Masters 
1885 Choir formed 
1888–1933 Joel Fredman 
1937–1939 Leo Phillip Slutzkin 
1939–1944 Athol Harlem 
1944–1950 Erwin Frenkel 
1950–1952 Paul Arndt 
1952–1975 Leo Phillip Slutzkin 
1975–2019 Adrian Bartak OAM 
2023      Avraham Yee 
   
Many people served in some form or other as 
administrator of the affairs of the Congregation. 
As the Congregation grew, positions changed 
from Honorary to paid and eventually several 
staff were employed simultaneously to adminis-
ter the affairs of the Congregation. The following 
people served either as sole administrator or as 
the lead administrator of the Congregation, at 
the time. 

Honorary Secretaries 
1871–1874 Hyman E Hart 
1874–1877 H I Alexander 
1877–1879 David Edward Theomin 
1879–1880 Samuel Crawcour 
1880–1883 Frederick David Michaelis 
1883–1885 Edward De Beer 
Secretaries 
1886–1888 Joseph Samuel Freidlander 
1888–1939 Joel Fredman 
1940–1943 Vera Lazar (assist. secretary) 
1943–1963 Vera Lazar 
1964–1969 Y Furst 
1969–1980 Ruby Grose 
Exec. Directors/Chief Exec. Officers 
1981–1993 Maurice Saunders 
1993–1997 Stephanie Joseph 
1997–1999 Barbara Cohen 
1999–2001 Debbie Getreu 
2007–2010 Brian Rudzki 
2010–2011 John P Slutzkin (acting) 
2012–2022 Rabbi Ronnie Figdor OAM 

2022 (Apr–Nov) David Marlow 

2022 (Nov) Rabbi Ronnie Figdor OAM 

 



8 St Kilda Hebrew Congregation 

Board of Management 
and Officers of the 
Congregation 
 
 
President 
Janice Iloni-Furstenberg 
 
Vice President 
Silviu Itescu 
 
Immediate Past President 
Gerald Bullon 
 
Treasurer 
Jay Greenberg 
 
Board 
Saul Berman (from Mar 23) 
Anton Block AM 
Paulette Cherny OAM 
Tim Cohen 
George Erlichster 

Rosalyn Gladwin (to Mar 23) 
Samuel Kagan 
Melanie Super 
Frank Tisher OAM 
Rachelle Unreich 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Executive Director (Apr-Nov 22) 
David Marlow (below left) 

  
Chief Executive Officer (from Nov 22) 
Rabbi Ronnie Figdor OAM (above right) 
 

Chief Minister 
Rabbi Yaakov Glasman AM (below left) 

  
Assistant Minister 
Rabbi Hillel Nagel (above right) 
 
Chief Minister Emeritus 
Rabbi Philip Heilbrunn OAM 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Chazzan and Musical Director 
Chazzan Brett Kaye (below left) 

  
Choirmaster 
Avraham Yee (above right) 
 

Choirmaster Emeritus 
Adrian Bartak OAM 
 

Bat Mitzvah teacher 
Tali Koth 
 

Auditor 
Lowe Lippmann 
 

Hon Solicitor 
Tisher Liner FC Law 

 

 
Janice Iloni-Furstenberg 

President 

 
Silviu Itescu 

Vice President 

 
Jay Greenberg 

Treasurer 

 
Gerry Bullon 

Immed. Past President 

 
Saul Berman 

 
Anton Block AM 

 
Paulette Cherny OAM 

 
Tim Cohen 

 
George Erlichster 

 
Rosalyn Gladwin 

 
Sam Kagan 

 
Melanie Super 

 
Frank Tisher OAM 

 
Rachelle Unreich 
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President’s Report 
 

It is with great pleasure 
that I present the 152nd 
Annual Report to members 
of the St Kilda Shule 
Congregation.  
 

They say it takes a village, 
but in our case, a kehillah.  
 

Our congregation, and a 
not-so-small, core group of both paid and 
honorary personnel make sure that our beloved 
Shule runs steadily, smoothly yet also remains 
vibrant and thriving.  
 

There are so many people to thank for their 
incredible contributions including the Rabbis, 
Board of Management and staff.  
 

Thanks go to the great contribution and 
involvement of ‘wardens’, past presidents and our 
vice-president, Silviu Itescu, who ensure that our 
religious services continue to run smoothly and 
without any hitches. Also to our wonderful choir, 
choirmaster and musical director Brett Kaye, who 
fill our Shule with beautiful melodies and joy 
throughout the year.  
 

To our internal security group, led by stalwarts 
Noel Levin OAM and Danny Goldsmith, our 
kiddush angels, Lesley Wolfson and life member 
Carmel Bridgeman, our TLC lunch hosts, Michele 
and Martin Streager, photographer Paul Topol and 
all our other valued volunteers. Thank you.  
 

Our wonderful bnei mitzvah team, represented by 
Board member Tim Cohen (who also initiated our 
very popular bnei mitzvah family Shabbaton), 
includes Rabbi Glasman, Rabbi Nagel and Tali Koth 
who all deserve much acknowledgment.  
 

Due to the ongoing, cheerful efforts of past 
president Len Levy OAM, we have comfort in the 
knowledge that we always have a daily Shacharit 
service.  
 
I would like to thank David Marlow for his valuable 
contribution, in particular for his ongoing 
involvement in the multicultural and climate 
change initiatives.  
 

Thank you to Rabbi Yaakov Glasman who brings 
much nachas to our Shule. Not only is he a 
wonderful rabbi and very much loved, but he is 
also a true mensch. A great representative for our 
Shule. He has the capacity to do the rabbi role and 
so much more for our Jewish and broader 
community, with the support of his wonderful 
wife, Rebbetzin Sara Glasman, who, behind the 
scenes, also contributes meaningfully to our Shule, 
including hosting Shabbas meals and events by 
opening up their home.  
 

Not only that, but Sara gets involved in bikur 
cholim and she has a reputation for making one of 
the best cholents in Melbourne, which we get to 
savour and enjoy in winter.  
 
Lastly, thank you to the multi-talented Rabbi 
Ronnie Figdor, whose shoes are hard to fill.  
 

In addition to our usual Shabbas and Chagim 
services and Shule events, there have also been 
some new and positive changes including: 

 
 

▪ In January, Avraham Yee, at only 21 years, 

became the seventh choirmaster in our 152 

year history. The choir has gone from strength 

to strength. As well as the joy it brings us 

every Shabbat morning, in the summer 

months, we hold Kabbalat Shabbat services at 

Caulfield Park and once a month at Emmy 

Monash Aged Care for delighted and 

appreciative residents and visitors 
 

 

▪ We published a Shabbat Song Book (with the 

assistance of Chazzan Brett Kaye) for Shabbas 

mornings containing the main Shabbat tunes, 

enabling members and guests to engage 

joyously in our choral services 
 

▪ A multi-faith and multi-cultural Shabbat 

service was initiated   
 

▪ Our Shule become the first Melbourne Shule 

to adopt an Environmental Protection and 

Climate Action policy in collaboration with the 

Jewish Climate Network 
 

▪ A Shule gardening Bee was created to 

beautify our gardens to complement our 

already magnificent heritage building and its 

interiors. 

Earlier this year, we were proud to be part of 
Ballarat Shule’s re-dedication ceremony, with our 
beloved Rabbi Hillel Nagel leading the service and 
Avraham Yee conducting the St Kilda choir at the 
service. We have enjoyed a very long, strong and 
close relationship with Ballarat Shule.  
 

Another highlight this year for me was 
unexpectedly stumbling across an old desk of Sir 
John Monash, purchasing and donating it to the 
Shule, becoming Rabbi Glasman’s new desk.   
 

We are blessed to have a strong mix of 
congregants that are both ‘newer’ members as 
well as multi-generational members, each equally 
important to us, valued and part of our extended 
family.  
 

We look forward to seeing you at Shule on Yomtov, 
hearing about or being part of your celebrations 
during the year, but also being there for you during 
your times of need. 

 

Janice Iloni-Furstenberg  
President  
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Chief Executive Officer’s Report 
 

After more than a decade 
in the Shule I retired from 
this position at the end of 
March 2022. I was 
honoured to be invited to 
return in an interim role in 
mid-November while a 
selection committee 
undertook a search for a 
new General Manager. 

During the past 8 months I have managed the 
organisation, initially full-time until February and 
then progressively reducing to four days a week 
an since July, to now three days a week.   
 
The operational highlights during the year were: 
 
• Repair of perimeter wall brickwork. 

• Relaunch of the successful Thursday Lunch 
Club in 2023, which now sees around 35-40 
each session. 

• Shiurim which had gone online during COVID 
during 2020-2 have moved to a hybrid face-
to-face and online presence. 

• Launch of a Cultural Fund which has received 
tax-deductible status. In January 2023, the 
Cultural Fund directors met and conceived of 
a first project which brought in around 
$15,000. 

• $10,000 donation from Greg Rosshandler 
towards the cost of new sukkah. This is part of a 
capital works project, supported by the State 
government with a $100,000 grant, to also 
refloor the ASC annexe and repair external 
brickwork to the ASC walls. 

• Multicultural service and Kiddush 

• Open House Melbourne 

• Award of a $300,000 Federal Government 
grant to refurbish the DC and Main Shule toilets. 

• Commission of the installation of a donor 
board to acknowledge 150th anniversary 
donors. 

• Commission of a plaque to accompany the 
pastel painting of Rabbi Danglow, purchased 
by the Cultural Fund in August 2022. 

• Refurbishment of the Danglow Centre 
corridors 

• New emergency locks in the two sides of the 
upstairs ladies gallery and the downstairs 
main doors at the back in accordance with 
CSG. 

 

Thanks go to David Marlow who was employed 
as Executive Director for the first 8 months of 
the year and continues to volunteer for the 
Shule and represents the Shule on the Climate 
Change Policy.  
 

I would like to thank the following for their 
critical contributions to making St Kilda Shule 
such an integral part of the Melbourne Jewish 
community: 

• President Janice Iloni-Furstenberg, Vice President 
Silviu Itescu, Treasurer Jay Greenberg and the 
Board of Management. 

• Rabbi Yaakov Glasman AM for his guidance 
and spiritual leadership. 

• Our Ministerial team, which includes our 
assistant Rabbi Hillel Nagel and Chazzan Brett 
Kaye, widely recognised in the community as 
being the A-team of Melbourne’s Shules.  

• The choristers of the shule who perform 
beautifully week in and week out under new 
choirmaster Avraham Yee and Brett Kaye’s 
musical directorship  

• The Bnei Mitzvah team of Rabbi Glasman, 
Rabbi Hillel Nagel, Tim Cohen and Tali Koth. 

• Office staff Rita Elbaz, Erica Slutzkin (who 
replaced Rabbi Pesach Steinberg in December 
2021 and who left us at the end of May 2023 
to work more on her travel agency), our 
Communications manager Karen Klein (who 
left our employ at the end of August), 
bookkeeper Corinne and Groundsman 
Raymond Landes. I also thank one of our 
regular consultants Amanda Brown, our 
Social Media manager.  

• Volunteers are the backbone without whom 
we could not have achieved so much. Thanks 
go to Lorette Brown and Garry Fabian OAM 
who have assisted with Shabbat Shalom 
articles, office volunteers John Karp (who 
comes every Monday and Wednesday 
afternoon), Abby Levy (who was coming 
every Wednesday afternoon until I moved to 
part-time) and Uri Rosenberg (who attends 
every Monday morning). John Slutzkin, Len 
Levy OAM and Paul Topol have been 
instrumental in assisting with weekday and 
Shabbat/Yom Tov services. Danny Goldsmith 
and Noel Levin OAM continue to organise the 
weekly volunteer security roster, a role that 
they have done for well over a decade. 

 
I thank my wife Eve who has had to put up with 
my “mid-life crisis” while I try working in other 
fields and organisations. We look forward to 
attending a grandson’s Bar Mitzvah in Israel, just 
before Rosh Hashanah but I will be back in time 
to lead Adele Southwick Centre parallel services 
over Kol Nidrei and Yom Kippur. 

 

Rabbi Ronnie Figdor OAM 
Chief Executive Officer 
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Senior Rabbi’s Report 
 

The past year has been an 
enormously productive 
one for the Shule and one I 
believe of which we can be 
incredibly proud. My 
contribution as the Senior 
Rabbi of the congregation 
has focused on the 
religious, pastoral and 
educational needs of our 

members, and has been a most rewarding 
experience. 

Over the past year I have officiated at weddings, 
Bar Mitzvahs, Bat Mitzvahs, britot, funerals, 
consecrations and various other life cycle events. 
My time is also dedicated to pre-wedding 
meetings with couples, Bar and Bat Mitzvah 
interviews, bereavement Shivah visits and sick 
visits. I make an active effort to personally phone 
our members to wish Mazal Tov on births, 
engagements, weddings, wedding anniversaries, 
milestone birthdays, and various other semachot. 
I also call our members to wish them condolences 
and “long life” following bereavements and have 
enjoyed calling our members on birthdays and 
wedding anniversaries, something which has been 
most appreciated by many members. 

I have delivered weekly Shabbat sermons from the 
pulpit as well as sermons on the Chagim and have 
delivered weekly shiurim on our Kabbalah for 
Beginners classes. I continue to contribute to the 
Shule’s weekly Shabbat Shalom newsletter by 
providing Torah pieces as well as my weekly Rabbi 
Glasman Touches Base pieces which inform our 
members of some of the things I get up to during 
the week. I also post on social media regularly to 
ensure maximum reach, especially among our 
younger demographic. I have assisted Rabbi Nagel 
in running fortnightly classes for our Bar Mitzvah 
group. These have been well attended and 
thoroughly enjoyed. 

 

I maintain an active involvement in wider Jewish 
communal affairs and often represent the Shule 
when doing so. I continue to provide public talks 
and keynote addresses at various communal 
forums and events, when requested, as well as 
sustaining engagement with other faith 
communities. I view my continued involvement in 
the wider community as important in representing 
St Kilda Shule, which is considered one of 

Melbourne’s leading Shules and should be seen as 
such in the wider community. This year, in 
particular, I am proud to have organised visits to 
the Shule by both then Governor Linda Dessau AC 
as well as Premier Daniel Andrews to see firsthand 
the excellent work our Shule does in building 
bridges with other faith communities. 

 

Rebbetzin Sara continues to be my strongest 
source of support in my work for the Shule, in 
addition to her own significant contribution in 
entertainment of Shule members, regular Shule 
attendance, pastoral care, and accompanying me 
to various life cycle events, as well as attending 
Shule functions. She has also completed 
professional development courses together with 
her colleagues as a means of enhancing her 
pastoral skills which is of benefit to the 
congregation, as well as contributing to the 

newsletter a monthly Rebbetzin’s Recipe. 

 

I also thank our dedicated Board of Management 
and other volunteers who tirelessly devote 
themselves towards our Shule to ensure we have 
strong lay leadership and grass roots support for 
all the work undertaken by our rabbis and office 
staff. I wish, in particular, to thank our Shule 
President Janice Iloni-Furstenberg for her role at 
the helm of our Shule’s lay leadership and for all 
the work she has done. It is a pleasure working 
alongside her. 

 

I take this opportunity to wish you all health and 
happiness and may we merit peace in Israel, 
speedily in our days. 

 
Rabbi Yaakov Glasman AM, Senior Rabbi 
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Assistant Minister’s Report 

 
As I look back over the 
past year, I think about 
all the amazing activities, 
events and classes that 
the Shule has offered. I 
have been fortunate to 
be part of our very 
successful Bar and Bat 
Mitzvah programme, 
exciting family events, 
engaging Torah classes 

and adult education, and numerous St Kilda 
shule simchas. I feel very privileged to work with 
such an amazing team – supporting Rabbi 
Glasman, singing with the choir, working with 
the President, Board, Chazzan, Choirmaster, 
CEO, office staff and the amazing team of 
volunteers - and of course, being part of our 
warm and vibrant kehillah. 

I really enjoy running the Bar Mitzvah 
programme with Rabbi Glasman and working 
with Tali Koth and our Bat Mitzvah programme. 
As a Shule, we should be very proud of the 
continued success of our programmes with 
growing numbers and an amazing variety of 
educational and social experiences. 

 

Our classes and activities give us the 
opportunity to connect with the Shule’s youth 
and hopefully build long-lasting relationships as 
participants grow into young adults and enter 
the world as proud and knowledgeable 
members of the Jewish community. A central 
theme of the curriculum is about giving to 
society, teaching participants about the role of 
a young Jewish adult in this world and the 
contribution that each can make. Some of the 
engaging activities include volunteering at a 
soup kitchen, learning about Melbourne’s 
charitable organisations, participating in the 
‘Remember Me’ course which teaches the 
Holocaust, genocide and human behaviour; and 
our weekly discussions on contemporary Jewish 
thought. 

A highlight of my week at Shule is our Talmud 
for Everyone class. This type of study allows us 

to gain a deeper insight into our laws and 
traditions. By analysing the sources, asking 
questions, arguing our points and sharing ideas, 
we end up learning new things and have a better 
understanding of Jewish laws and traditions and 
their purpose. We are able to take this ancient 
wisdom and make it relevant to our daily work 
and family lives. Some of the topics we covered 
this year included the Jewish court system, 
origins of the siddur, conversions, mysticism, 
and science in Halachah. 

 

Another fond memory from the past year 
occurred in March when our Shule was very 
honoured to be part of an historic service at 
Ballarat Hebrew Congregation in honour of their 
rededication following an extensive renovation. 
Our Shule has had a long association with 
Ballarat and it was a great privilege to lead the 
afternoon service together with special prayers 
and songs together with our very own St Kilda 
Shule choir, led by Choirmaster Avraham Yee. 
Over 100 guests from the Ballarat community as 
well as many visitors from Melbourne and 
beyond enjoyed this special event. 

 

Above all, being part of a wonderful community 
gives us a sense of purpose and belonging. Aside 
from our wonderful Shabbat, Yom Tov and daily 
services, St Kilda Shule offers so many events, 
activities and classes – there is something for 
everyone. 

Best wishes for a Ketivah VaChatimah Tovah. 
May we all be inscribed for a healthy, successful 
and good New Year. 

 

Hillel, Debbie and family 

https://stkildashule.org.au/zoomlive
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Treasurer’s Report 

 

Dear valued members and 
seat holders, 

Despite a challenging 
economic environment, I am 
pleased to report that the 
Shule’s financial position 
remains robust. 

Despite an inflationary 
environment, with the assistance and generosity 
of our growing membership base, for the 12 
month period ending 31 March 2023, the Shule 
reported a small deficit of $21,177.  This result 
aligned to our conservatively planned budget 
which forecast a breakeven result. 

In 2023, total revenue grew marginally by 6.85% 
compared to the prior financial year, mostly driven 
by Offerings, Membership Income and Seat 
Income. As well as improvement in operating 
income, the Shule derived additional passive 
income of $33,114 as a result of a successful 
implementation of investment strategy in respect 
to our capital reserve. We expect this yield will 
improve throughout the 2024 financial year, as a 
result of the increased interest rate environment. 

Despite healthy growth in income, the Shule 
continues to face significant cost pressures most 
notably Repairs & Maintenance (+52.47%), and 
overall increase in event and operating 
expenditure, reflective of increased community 
activity following the forced covid hibernation. 

In response to increasing cost pressures, the Shule 
has instituted price increase to membership and 
seat fees, in line with CPI. Membership fees have 
risen from $395 to $425 per annum, whilst seat 
fees have risen broadly by an amount that overall 
should not exceed 8%. As we stress every year, 
membership and seat rental fees are the financial 
lifeblood of our Shule, and we very much 
appreciate your understanding and support on this 
matter. 

Upon review of our published financial 
statements, you’ll note that at 31 March 23, our 
balance sheet is strong, and has improved in 
comparison to the 2022 financial year. The Shule’s 
total asset position has remained stable at 
$10.32M, (comprised mostly of Land & Buildings 
valued at $9M). The organisation is formally debt 
free, and total liabilities have fallen by 
approximately $109,000, due to the reallocation of 
government support income to be allocated to 
capital improvements. In the period, net assets 
from remained materially stable at $9,965,659. 

Looking ahead to the 2024 financial year, we have 
prepared a conservative budget which anticipates 
a small operating loss to reflect ongoing 
inflationary pressures, as well as provision for the 

board’s enthusiasm to broaden membership 
activity and community engagement.  

During the 2024 financial year, the Shule intends 
to embark on some significant capital investment 
projects. These include: 

• Renovation of all bathroom facilities in the Shule 
and Danglow Centre buildings 

• Restoration of the Adele Southwick Centre 
annex and associated sukkah 

• Playground installation, next to the annex 

• Repair to the brick wall surrounding the 
premises 

 

 

• Restoration of the front and side Shule doors, 
possibly with a federal government grant 

Finally, as you would be aware, the board are 
currently investing in a detailed administrative 
restructure of the office in order to better support 
the Shule’s facilities, programmes, ministerial staff 
and members. As part of this restructure, we soon 
expect to welcome a new administrative 
leadership. The board very much looks forward to 
successfully implementing this new restructure 
and working closely with the new team to deliver 
the strategic direction of Janice and the board. 

 
Yours Sincerely, 

  
Jay Greenberg 
Honorary Treasurer 
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Library Fund report 
 

The current Trustees of the Library Fund are 
Frank Tisher OAM (Chairman), Julian Black 
OAM, Jeff Degen, Luana Felber, Rabbi Yaakov 
Glasman AM, Anthony (Danny) Goldsmith and 
Selwyn Greenberg. 

The weekly Shabbat Shalom is published both in 
print edition and online, boasting a more-than 
1550 circulation. It is posted out each week to 
the older members who do not have an email 
address. The newsletter continues to be popular 
both with our own membership and the wider 
Jewish community (approx. cost $8000) and its 
circulation has been maintained, particularly in 
the electronic version. The Trustees are very 
grateful for the continued support of Rosetta 
Bloom who generously sponsors the publication 
in memory of Nathan Baron and Alan Bloom. 

The Library Fund maintains a library containing 
a diverse collection of books and memorabilia 
and supports our education programs and 
publications. It houses an impressive collection 
of Jewish music, in particular vinyl LPs of 
Chazzanut and ‘Jewish’-related music. A large 
collection of classical music was generously 
donated by Suzie Ehrmann, in memory of her 
late husband and former President Ephraim’s 
collection. 

Other activities of the Library Fund include: 

• Housing of educational materials for the 
teaching of Hebrew, Jewish history, Jewish 
culture and religion as well as objects and art 
works of religious significance; 

• Weekly Bat Mitzvah and Bar Mitzvah 
programs; 

• Adult education programs by both Rabbi 
Glasman and Rabbi Nagel, held on Zoom in 
the past year and more recently face-to-face; 

• The Yom Kippur Yizkor memorial booklet. 
Principal sponsors are sought each year to 
honour the memory of a loved one. Should 
you wish to honour a loved one by sponsoring 
the Memorial Booklet, please contact CEO, 
Rabbi Ronnie Figdor on exec@stkildashule.org. 

To all our supporters and donors, we thank you. 
The Library Fund is a deductible gift recipient 
(DGR) for income tax purposes and all donations 
are tax deductible. Whether you wish to donate 
for a particular purpose or to assist in its 
programs, we would welcome your support. 

I thank all the current Trustees for their time 
and commitment. In particular thanks to Jeff 
Degen for his efforts in preparing accounts and 
managing the Library Fund financials. We also 
record our thanks to the Executive Director 
David Marlow until November and, since 
November, our CEO Rabbi Ronnie Figdor OAM 
for his support and involvement, including his 
attendance at meetings of the Trustees. 

Support our Library Fund by making a tax-
deductible donation to: 

• trybooking.com/au/donate/stkildashulelibrary 

• or EFT into our bank account 
BSB: 633-000 Account: 130204902 

Frank Tisher OAM, Chairman 
 

Library Fund Donors 
 
Rosetta Bloom 
Grant Cohen 
Rabbi Ronnie Figdor OAM 
Konstantin Khomko 
Barry Levy 
Paul Lichtenstein 
Jonathan Markowitz 
Stephen Mendel 
Phillippe Zimet 
 
Jeffrey Degen, Treasurer 
 
 

Cultural Fund report — Choir, 
Music and Arts 
 

After much work and patience by CEO Rabbi 
Figdor OAM and lawyer Harriet Warlow-Shill, in 
April we were advised that we were registered 
in the Register of Cultural Organisations (ROCO) 
allowing us to provide tax deductibility for 
donations. These donations support our 
musical, artistic and choral programs. 

Our first acquisition was the acquisition of a 
1906 pastel portrait of Rabbi Jacob Danglow to 
be on display in the Danglow Centre, thanks to 
very kind donors. The pastel portrait of Rabbi 
Jacob Danglow by Isaac Michael Cohen (1906) 
was purchased by the St Kilda HC Cultural Fund 
(2022) thanks to the very kind support of Ruth 
Baxt in memory of her late husband Professor 
Robert ‘Bob’ Baxt AO, Ian Davis, George & 
Evelyn Erlichster, Luana Felber, Hannah & 
Selwyn Greenberg, Mary Schwartz & Gordon 
Silverman, Frank Tisher OAM & Miriam Tisher. 

The current Trustees of the Cultural Fund are 
Julian Black OAM (Chairman), Nathan Shafir 
OAM, Janice Goldsmith, Nicole Itescu and Rabbi 
Ronnie Figdor OAM (Secretary). 

After the reporting period, the Fund launched 
“Friends of the choir” project to support our 
liturgical musical culture. 

Support our Cultural Enrichment Fund by making 
a tax-deductible donation to: 

• trybooking.com/au/donate/shuleculturalfund 

• or EFT into our bank account 
BSB: 633-000 Account: 193320827 

 
Julian Black, Chair 

mailto:exec@stkildashule.org
https://www.trybooking.com/au/donate/stkildashulelibrary
https://trybooking.com/au/donate/shuleculturalfund
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Property Report 
 
Facilities management is an onerous role with our 
aging buildings. Although the Board approved the 
appointment of a half-time Facilities Manager, the 
role remained unfilled. 

During the year under review the following took 
place (with thanks to the named individuals): 

• General repairs and maintenance were undertaken 
regularly by our onsite groundsman Raymond 
Landes and assorted handymen. 

• Quarterly cleaning of the grease trap outside the 
Samuel Meyers Hall (SMH) kitchen. Biannual 
audits of our extinguishers and emergency 
signage. Annual termite inspection in the SMH. 

• Staff shortages have challenged our ability to 
appoint someone to set up kiddushim and on 
occasion people to do gate security duty for 
events. We are now fortunate Charmaine 
Wilson helps us out with setting up kiddushim. 
As Friday and Chagim services have now moved 
to the DC, Charmaine packs down the “Shule” 
layout in the DC and then sets up kiddushim. 

• Bruce Levin and sometimes Jeff Caser covered 
security on the gate for functions and weddings. 

Venue hire/tenancy continues to be a big source 
of revenue for the Shule: 

• Gymbaroo in the ASC (Tue-Thu school terms) 
• Australian Friendship Circle (each Sun and Sun-

Fri during winter and summer day camp). 
• Nifla Kosher catering in half of the ASC kitchen 

(Sun-Fri) 
• Alfie’s Food Co manufacturing nut butters in the 

ASC kitchen storeroom area (Sun-Fri) also rent 
office space and storage. 

• Three Daughters Food manufactured vegan 
soups in the DC kitchen (Wed-Fri) ceasing trading 
just days before Pesach 2023. 

• Kosher Meals on Wheels produce meals twice a 
week in our kitchens and lease office space. 

• Casual rentals for Bar Mitzvahs (from other 
Shules), Sheva Berachot, birthday parties, etc. 
continue with increasing regularity. The Jewish 
Museum brings through school groups almost 
daily. 

Building works 
• DC and Shule toilets refurbishment works will 

commence in the coming year thanks to a 
$300,000 Federal Government grant. 

• Shortly, the glass Ark doors will be replaced with 
stronger ones made of polycarbonate. 

• Unfortunately, the annexe and sukkah 
renovations have not progressed according to 
plan. Therefore, for the second year in a row, we 
will rely on a temporary sukkah. 

 
 
Rabbi Ronnie Figdor OAM, CEO 

 
 

  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   



16 St Kilda Hebrew Congregation 

Choir Report 
 
The past year has been both a success and a 
testament towards a bright future for our choir. 

This year saw the appointment of a new 
choirmaster. This change has allowed for 
revitalised commitment, attitude and opportunity 
for the choristers. This past year has seen many 
successful performances, both at St Kilda Hebrew 
Congregation (SKHC) for our weekly services and 
at community events locally and across the state. 

Through weekly rehearsals, we have been able to 
develop the skills vital to a successful choir; 
harmony, pitch and balance through vocal support 
and control. The choir has also been able to 
expand their repertoire throughout these 
rehearsals, ensuring musical variance in every 
performance. The community response has 
certainly been positive. 

In line with the passing of the baton of choirmaster 
for the first time in 45 years, the choir is committed 
to looking to the future. Whilst upholding and 
cherishing a sacred choral tradition performed in 
the Shule since 1887, we are fervent in our pursuit 
of constant development. In this next phase we 
look towards perfecting services that can inspire 
and engage congregants whilst developing our 
out-of-service appearances before the wider 
community; increasing reach and access to the 
musical experience we provide. We are a very 
unique asset. We are a premier synagogue choir 
on both national and international standards, 
committed to cherishing tradition in harmony, 
with both old and new. 

A huge thank you to our amazing choristers, 
without whom there would be no choir. Thank you 
to our Chazan, Brett Kaye, a mellifluous soloist and 
a dear friend to the choir. A final thanks to the 
choirmaster emeritus Adrian Bartak OAM, you 
have set a fine benchmark to live up to. 

Avraham Yee 
Choirmaster 
 
 
Members of the Main Shule and ASC Choirs 
Chazzan: Brett Kaye Alexander Itescu 
Eugene Belenko Isaac Itescu 
Anton Block AM Bruce Levin 
Danny Block Phil Levy 
Gerry Bullon Nathan Luft 
Nathan Camilleri Tim Lynk 
David Castelan Alick Mazin 
Gregory Cveigoren Alexander Pokryshevsky 
David Eden David Prins 
Michael Erlichster Jeffrey Rosenfeld 
Rabbi Ronnie Figdor Tobie Sacks 
Corey Fooks Ray Sifris 
Jason Fooks Paul Topol 
Matan Franco Gavriel Yee 
 
 

Protective Services Report 
 
Once again, our grateful thanks go to our 
volunteers for another year of standing at the gate 
and in the street safeguarding our community. Our 
volunteers remain alert and are flexible and 
accommodating with regard to shifts and we 
appreciate their support. 

We hosted a full on CSG training session in the ASC 
which included some advanced training not 
previously covered. Those who attended went 
home with a greater appreciation of the situations 
which may arise and how to deal with them. 

Our thanks go to David Marlow and Ronnie Figdor 
for their substantial assistance during the year. 

Our thanks also go to the CSG for their excellent 
support, and attending when issues arise during 
the year and sending highly trained members to 
assist us over Yom Tov. 

2022 marked the return of the Yom Tov services 
after two years of lockdown and our extended list 
of volunteers carried out their tasks smoothly and 
efficiently with no problems arising. 

During the year, changes to our security 
infrastructure inside the Shule and on the 
perimeter, together with some innovations with 
our equipment, improved our ability to deal with 
any situations which may arise. 

We continue to encourage volunteers over the age 
of 18 years to join our team and ensure that some 
of our older members may be given the 
opportunity to reduce their involvement. Please 
indicate your interest by contacting the CEO in the 
Shule office on exec@stkildashule.org 

Danny Goldsmith (Co-Chair Protective Services) 
 

 
New emergency lock installed in 2022 
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Events and achievements 
 

Regular events 
• Gymbaroo in the ASC Tue-Thu during school term 
• Nifla Kosher Catering in ASC kitchen Sun-Fri 
• Kosher Meals on Wheels, with permanent office 

in the DC, cook in ASC kitchen Tue-Wed 
• Rabbi Glasman’s Kabbalah Shiur each Mon night 
• Rabbi Nagel’s Talmud Shiur every Tue fortnight 
• Bar & Bat Mitzvah Programmes every Sun 

throughout school term 
• Australian Friendship Circle activities almost 

weekly in the ASC in addition to its Summer and 
Winter Day Camps 

• Monthly Thursday Lunch Club 
• Monthly Kabbalat Shabbat at Emmy Monash 
• School and Jewish Museum visits several times a 

week 
 
Special events 
April 
• Dedication of Hallenstein family entrance 
• David Marlow takes over as new Executive 

Director, newsletter reminisces Rabbi Ronnie 
Figdor’s 10-year history 

• Gala High Tea celebrating Shule’s 150th anniversary 
• Book commemorating 150th goes on sale 
• Kabbalah Shiur “Why is the Mosiach called a 

‘Leper’?” 
• Talmud for everyone shiur “Making your Seder 

more meaningful and engaging for all ages” 
• Kabbalah Shiur “Redefining Freedom: A 

Kabbalistic Approach” 
• Kabbalah Shiur “The Kabbalah of the splitting of 

the Sea” 
• Kabbalah Shiur “To be a citizen of this world” 
• Kiddush honours Garry Fabian for OAM 
 
May 
• Rosh Chodesh breakfast following Shacharit 
• Kabbalah Shiur “Love your fellow as you love 

yourself: Is that even possible?” 
• Talmud for everyone shiur “Jewish Laws: where 

did all the details come from?” 
• Israel Shabbat kiddush speaker: Jamie Hyams 

 
• Kabbalah Shiur “Social Justice issues: A deeper 

perspective” 
• Kiddush to honour Ian Davis OAM and Alan 

Finkel AC 
• Kabbalah Shiur “Humility vs Low Self Esteem” 
• Talmud for everyone shiur “The origins of our 

Siddur. Exploring the background and structure 
of our daily prayer book” 

• Shule staff runs Morning Tea fundraiser for 
Cancer Council 

• Rebbitzen organises cholent Kiddush 

• Kabbalah Shiur “People of the Book: A deeper 
understanding” 

• Kiddush to honour volunteers 

 
• Kabbalah Shiur “Why did G-d give us the Torah 

in the middle of nowhere?” 
• Talmud for everyone shiur “Converting to 

Judaism. The origins of the conversion process” 
 
June 
• Four women line-up for Tikkun Leil Shavuot 

program at Rabbi's house 
• Shavuot Ice cream party sponsored by Christina 

& Simon Edelstein 
• Gabby Walters Shavuot sponsors flowers in 

memory of parents 
• Whisky (& Gin), Cheesecake, Blintzes & All That 

Jazz Shavuot celebration 
• Kabbalah Shiur “Why did Nazarites need to cut 

off their hair? A Kabbalistic insight” 
• Talmud for everyone shiur “Navigating the 

Siddur: our gateway to prayer” 
• Shule seeks funds to purchase a 1906 pastel of 

Rabbi Jacob Danglow 
• Kabbalah Shiur “Why did the spies refuse to 

enter Israel? A Kabbalistic insight” 
• Rabbi Glasman and David Marlow join Vinnies 

CEO sleepout on cold, winter night 
• Rabbi Glasman joins solidarity event for the 

Muslim community 
• Kabbalah Shiur “The Kabbalah of Korach's mutiny” 
• Talmud for everyone shiur “The Mystery of the 

Red Cow” 
• Shule runs Zoom forum on plans to ease Jewish 

education cost 
 
July 
• Kabbalah Shiur “Altruism: How far should we go?” 
• Greg Rosshandler donates $10K for new sukkah 
• Kabbalah Shiur “The Kabbalah of Parenthood” 
• Talmud for everyone shiur “Wizards and Talking 

Donkeys” 
• Thu Lunch Club with Paulette Cherny OAM 
• Purchase of Russian and large-print siddurim. 
• Shule hosts Ahmadiyyan Muslim community’s 

Imam Janud, Catholic Archbishop Peter 
Comensoli, State Liberal Leader Matthew Guy 
and local member for Caulfield and Deputy 
Leader David Southwick 
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• Shule hosts Multicultural and multifaith Kiddush 
at initiative of David Marlow 

• Kabbalah Shiur “How Many Times Have the Jews 
Left Egypt Since the Jews Left Egypt? A 
Kabbalistic Perspective” 

• Rabbi Nagel's Talmud for everyone shiur "Would 
your evidence stand up in a Jewish Court? Who 
do you believe?" 

 
• Shule hosts Open House Melbourne shule tour 
 
August 
• Kabbalah Shiur “Was the forty years wandering 

in the desert time wasted?” 
• Monthly Kabbalat Shabbat resume at Emmy Monash 
• Kabbalah Shiur “Why was there no echo at 

Sinai? A Kabbalistic perspective” 
• Reunion held for 3rd St Kilda Danglow’s Own 

Scouts, 4th St Kilda Girl Guides and Hebrew 
School 

• Kabbalah Shiur “Does the mezuza have a protective 
quality? A spiritual perspective” 

• Thu Lunch Club with Brett Kaye 
• Kabbalah Shiur “Vegetarianism - What does the 

Kabbalah say?” 
• Talmud for everyone shiur “The story of the 

Roman Emperor Titus and its relevance today” 
• Shule elects Janice Iloni-Furstenberg as first 

female President in 151 years 
• Pre-high holidays musical experience and 

Kumzits 
• Brett Kaye performs with Yudi Cohen & Dov Farkas 
 
September 
• Thu Lunch Club with Ittay Flescher 
• Shule purchases Braille siddurim 
• Kabbalat Shabbat at Emmy Monash 
• Kiddush to honour volunteers 

 
• Kabbalah Shiur “Building a fence around our 

roof, and around our lives” 
• Talmud for everyone shiur “Consumer ratings - 

if you had a bad experience in a hotel or 
restaurant, is it a mitzvah or a sin to leave 
negative feedback?” 

• Kiddush acknowledges Brett Kaye’s decade of 
service 

• Bat Mitzvah and Bar Mitzvah reunion 
• Pre-Rosh Hashanah crafts with Gina Adelson 
• Kabbalah Shiur “’You shall walk in G-d's ways’: 

How on earth can humans be like G-d?!” 

• Karen Klein retires as Communications and 
Development Manager 

• Cleaning of silverware before High Holydays 
• St Kilda Shule joins with Caulfield Shule in hosting 

the annual first night Midnight Selichot 

 
• Kabbalah Shiur “Why were animals created 

before humans? A Rosh Hashana special” 
 
October 
• Shule notes passing of her Majesty Queen 

Elizabeth with Chief Rabbi's Prayer 
• High Holydays services resume for first time in 

three years 
• Inaugural Kallot Torah honoured alongside 

Chatan Torah and Chatan Bereishit 
• Kabbalat Shabbat at Emmy Monash 
• Talmud for everyone shiur “Does the majority 

always rule - will your claim stack up in a Jewish 
court?” 

• Kids games & activities followed by kiddush in 
the sukkah 

• Nighttime children's Simchat Torah party 
• Thu Lunch Club on Safeguarding our children 
• Kabbalah Shiur “The Industrial Revolution and 

the Messianic Age: A Kabbalistic Insight” 
• Kabbalah Shiur “Why did Abraham wait until he 

was 99 to give himself a Bris?” 
 
November 
• Thu Lunch Club with UIA’s Jeff Feldman 
• Kabbalat Shabbat at Emmy Monash 
• Kabbalah Shiur “Why is a Bris so important to 

Jews?” 
• Talmud for everyone shiur “Who was the first 

Jew? Is there really a chosen nation?” 
• Kabbalah Shiur “Physical appearances - Why 

does the Torah care about them?” 
• WIZO Shabbat with guest speaker Paulette 

Cherny 
• Kabbalah Shiur “The destructive nature of 

gossiping: A Kabbalistic perspective” 
• Talmud Shiur “How and when was the Torah 

written?” 
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• Executive Director David Marlow resigns. Former 
CEO Rabbi Ronnie Figdor returns in the interim 
until a long-term replacement is appointed 

• Shule runs Sports Night 

 
• Kiddush to honour choir and Bar/Bat mitzvah 

graduates 
• Kiddush guest speaker Dr Rick Hodes 

 
• Kabbalah Shiur “Don't be religious at someone 

else's expense” 
 
December 
• Bat Mitzvah Ceremony 
• Kabbalat Shabbat at Emmy Monash postponed 

due to gastro outbreak 
• Kabbalah Shiur “Why did G-d change Jacob's 

name?” 
• Talmud for everyone shiur “Prophets - why don't 

we have them anymore?” 
• Shule holds Rabbi Genende’s book launch 

 
• Pre-Chanukah Kabbalat Shabbat at Emmy Monash 
• Kabbalah Shiur “The Mystique of Chanukah” 
• Onsite food manufacturers have spot inspection 
 
January 
• Shule seeks volunteers with a ‘green thumb’. 

Gardening bee is created. 
• Shule moves away from single-use plastics in 

advance of a State-wide ban in February 
February 

• Thu Lunch Club with Joel Burnie 
• Kabbalat Shabbat at Emmy Monash 
• Shule appoints Avraham Yee as its next choir 

master 
• Kabbalah Shiur “Do women have a stronger 

connection to the Torah than men?” 
• Talmud for everyone shiur “Do we believe in 

miracles?” 
• Shule visits return to pre-COVID levels 
• Long-term shule rep retires - Sandra Goldman 
• Kabbalah Shiur “Being Jewish: Is it who we are 

or what we are?” 
• ShabbaTTogether Kabbalat Shabbat with guest 

speaker Dean Cohen 

 
• Kabbalah Shiur “Alcohol consumption: What 

does the Kabbalah say?” 
• Talmud for everyone shiur “’It's not 

personal…it's strictly business.’ Do ethics need 
to be kosher?” 

• Kabbalat Shabbat in Caulfield Park 
• Kabbalah Shiur “Why is Moses' name missing 

from the Parasha?” 
 
March 
• Purim Thu Lunch Club with Michael Shafar 
• Kabbalat Shabbat at Emmy Monash 
• Kabbalat Shabbat in Caulfield Park 
• Thu Lunch Club with Adam Segal: Israel at 

crossroads 
• Leon Velik sponsors Kiddush for 100th birthday 
• Shule participates in Ballarat Synagogue rededi-

cation service 
• Kabbalah shiur “What you see in the mirror 

every day is proof of G-d’s existence” 
• Talmud for everyone shiur “Pesach: Are we truly 

free?” 
• Kabbalah shiur “How to experience a 

meaningful Seder” 
• Kabbalat Shabbat at Emmy Monash 
• Shule and JNF run morning tea with political 

commentator Gill Troy 

 
• Thu Lunch Club with Dean Frenkel 
• First gardening bee meeting 
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Board Meetings & 
Attendances 

 
April 2022 – March 2023 

Total Board Meetings for year – 10 

April, May, June, July, August, September, 
November, December, February, March. 

Board Member Meetings Attended 

Janice Iloni-Furstenberg (Vice President until Oct; 

   then President) 8 

Silviu Itescu (Vice President from Oct) 6 

Jay Greenberg (Treasurer) 10 

Gerry Bullon (President until Oct; then Immediate 

   Past President) 8 

Saul Berman (co-opted in Mar) 1 

Anton Block AM 9 

Paulette Cherny OAM (from Sep) 3 

Timothy Cohen 8 

George Erlichster  9 

Rosalyn Gladwin (resigned in Mar) 3 

Samuel Kagan 7 

Melanie Super 8 

Frank Tisher OAM 8 

Rachelle Unreich 7 

Officials Meetings Attended 

Rabbi Yaakov Glasman 9 

David Marlow (Apr-Oct) 6 

Rabbi Ronnie Figdor OAM (Nov-Mar) 3 

 
 
 

Minutes 
 
Minutes of the 151st Annual General Meeting of 
the St Kilda Hebrew Congregation Inc held on 
Monday 29th August 2022 in the Danglow 
Centre at 8:00pm 
 
President: Gerry Bullon, in the Chair 
Vice President: Janice Iloni-Furstenberg (Zoom) 
Treasurer: Jay Greenberg 
Board Members: Anton Block AM, Tim Cohen, 

George Erlichster, Sam Kagan, Melanie Super 
and Rachelle Unreich (Zoom) 

Other Past Presidents: David Kolieb, Jeff Pura. 
Past Presidents & Life Members: Leonard H Levy 

OAM 
Life Members: Carmel Bridgeman 
Members: Anthony Felber, Danny Goldsmith, 

Janice Goldsmith, Mira Kolieb, David Marlow, 
Harry Pose, Danny Shafir, Raymond Sifris, Paul 
Topol, Gabby Walters. 

Ministers & Rebbetzins: Chief Minister Rabbi 
Yaakov Glasman, Rebbetzin Sara Glasman, 
Rabbi Hillel Nagel. 

Apologies: Graham Berkovitch Past President, 
Deirdre Beville, Keith Beville, Ted Bridgeman, 
Jeremy Brown, Suzanne Brown OAM Life 
Member, David Casper Past President, 
Paulette Cherny OAM Board Member, Garry 
Fabian, Clive Fredman, Dr Judy Landau, Noel 
Levin OAM Life Governor, Bruce Levy, Kay Levy, 
Rhonda Levy, Alick Mazin, Tammy Pura, Beth 
Slutzkin, John Slutzkin Past President & Life 
Member, Harold Sternfeld Immediate Past 
President, Frank Tisher OAM Board Member, 
Miriam Tisher. 

 
Opening and Welcome 
Gerry Bullon President and Chair declared the 
meeting open at 8.05pm. 
 
The President welcomed those in attendance 
and in particular Board members; ministers & 
their spouses; Life Governors; Past Presidents; 
Life Members. He thanked David Marlow for 
recording the minutes of this AGM. 
 
A minute’s silence was held to remember all 
those Members who have passed since the last 
meeting, and those tragically killed in Israel. 
 
Rabbi Glasman addressed the meeting and 
commented on: 

The wonderful time we have in our Shule when 
we gather in person on the High Holy Days. 
The cohesive joint effort of rabbinic and lay 
leadership. 
The good reputation of our services and 
events. 
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We are kicking goals as we have member 
families who have strong and deep roots 
within our congregation. 
The new member families who bring new 
contributions. 
Thanked Rebbetzin, Gerry (150th Anniversary), 
Jay and all members of the congregation. 
Looking forward to a meaningful High Holy 
Days. 

 
The President thanked Rabbi Glasman. 
 
1. Confirmation of the Minutes of the last 

Annual General Meeting (Annual Report pp. 
18-19) held on Monday, 30th August 2021 
(10.2(a)). 
IT WAS MOVED by Anton Block AM and 
SECONDED by Carmel Bridgeman that the 
Minutes be confirmed as a true and correct 
record. There being no amendments and no 
discussion, The President put the motion. 
CARRIED 

 
2. The Presentation and consideration of the 

Annual Report of the Board (10.2(b)) 
excluding the Statement of Accounts. 
The President MOVED that the annual 
report, excluding the Statement of Accounts 
be received and adopted. SECONDED by 
Harry Pose. CARRIED 
 
The President also publicly thanked Paul 
Topol as he attends every time that there is 
opportunity for us to have an historical 
record of an event. He is there and we are 
much better for his presence. 

 
3. The presentation and consideration of the 

Statement of Accounts (10.2(b)). 
Honorary Treasurer Jay Greenberg 
commented on the accounts for the past 
financial year, advising that it had been a very 
challenging year due to COVID. COVID had a 
profound impact and remarked on the 
amazing resilience of our members, who had 
retained their memberships through COVID. 
The Shule was in a strong and stable position, 
resulting in a virtual break-even position. The 
forecasts suggested a similar position for the 
next year, though there were some 
challenges ahead. He noted the increase in 
seat fees, which was essential to the financial 
wellbeing of the Shule. Significant capital 
expenditure was planned, thanks to the 
support of the State and Federal 
Governments. 
 
The Treasurer noted that the Shule’s capital 
reserve of ($700-$800k) had been placed 
with a wealth management group 
(Hewisons) to obtain a much-improved rate 

of return, but still conservatively to protect 
the Shule’s reserves. Hewisons had been 
selected by the Board through a tender 
process. 
 
The Treasurer moved that the Statement of 
Accounts be received and adopted. 
The Motion was SECONDED by Gerry Bullon 
Motion CARRIED. 

 
4. The fourth Item on the Agenda is to approve 

by Special Resolution the marked-up 
Amendments to the By Laws of the 
Congregation. 
Anton Block AM spoke to the proposed 
Amendments to the By Laws and highlighted 
that they modified the Shule’s formal 
arrangements so that they better reflected 
the reality of operations, the creation of the 
positions of Wardens, the changes were 
derived from discussions of the Religious 
Committee and to help facilitate a President 
who cannot fulfil the full role of the President 
halachically. 
 

Len Levy asked about the need for the 
Amendments. These were explained and 
understanding reached. 
 

George Erlichster raised concern about the 
disappearance of the term ‘Segan’. After 
discussion, the motion was amended (4.5(iii)) 
to add the words “also historically was 
known as the Segan” 
 

Anton Block AM moved that the Amendments 
to the By Laws be approved. 
The Motion was SECONDED by Gerry Bullon 
Motion CARRIED. 

 

5. The fifth Item on the Agenda is the election 
of office bearers and members of the Board 
(10.(c)). 
 
(a) The Executive Director declared that the 

position of President was now vacant as 
per 9.1(b): The President, Vice-President, 
and five Members must retire annually 
but are eligible for re-election except that 
no President or Vice-President may hold 
office in that capacity for more than two 
successive years (excluding any period 
served to fill a casual vacancy under Law 
9.3) unless recommended to serve a 
further year to the Annual General 
Meeting by at least three-quarters of the 
total number of Board Members and 
particulars of such recommendation are 
contained in the notice required by Law 
10.4. 

 



22 St Kilda Hebrew Congregation 

 
(b) The Executive Director has acted as 

Returning Officer and, in that capacity, 
has already advised members via Shabbat 
Shalom, of the nominations that he 
received by the due date. The President 
declared the position of President now 
vacant but shall continue briefly as 
Chairman of the meeting. 

 
(c) The Executive Director advised, as 

returning officer, that “The following 
nominations had been received for 
President”: Janice Iloni-Furstenberg. The 
Executive Director declared Janice Iloni-
Furstenberg elected President for a one-
year term. 

 
(d) The Executive Director invited the 

incoming President to address the 
meeting over Zoom. (Incoming President 
takes over on Shabbat Bereishit). 

 

 Janice Iloni-Furstenberg presented over 
Zoom from South Africa. Excerpt from her 
acceptance speech:  

 

It is both an honour and a privilege to be 
appointed, and if I am not mistaken, as 
the 86th President (56th person) of St Kilda 
Shule and the first female President. I 
have been deeply touched and inspired 
by the generous words of 
congratulations, mazel tov and 
encouragement already. There are so 
many people to thank, but in particular I 
wish to thank Rabbi Yaakov Glasman who 
has been supportive from day 1, the 
wonderful members of the Board, staff 
and members of the congregation.   

 
(e) The Executive Director, as returning 

officer, declared that “The following 
nominations had been received for Vice 
President”: Silviu Itescu. The Executive 
Director declared Silviu Itescu elected 
Vice President for a one-year term. 

 
(f) The Executive Director, as returning 

officer, declared that “The following 
nominations had been received for 
Honorary Treasurer”: Jay Greenberg. The 
Executive Director declared Jay 
Greenberg elected Honorary Treasurer 
for a two-year term. 

 
(g) The Executive Director advised that there 

were 7 vacancies on the Board, of which 
5 are for a two-year term, and 2 for a one-
year term. He further advised, as 
returning officer, that “The following 
nominations six have been received for 

Board Member”: Paulette Cherny OAM, 
Anton Block AM, Rachelle Unreich, Tim 
Cohen, Melanie Super and Sam Kagan. 

 
Executive Director declared the following 
Elected for a two-year term (as continuing 
members): Anton Block AM, Rachelle Unreich, 
Tim Cohen and Sam Kagan. 
 
Executive Director declared the following 
Elected for a one-year term: Paulette Cherny 
OAM and Melanie Super 
 
The President asked those present to join 
them in congratulating all those who 
tendered their nomination. 

 
6. The sixth item on the agenda is the 

appointment of the Auditor (10.2(d)). 
President called on the Honorary Treasurer. 
President asked was there any discussion on 
the appointment of the auditor. There was 
none. 
 
The Honorary Treasurer moved a MOTION to 
continue the appointment of Loren Datt 
from Lowe Lippmann & partners as the 
Congregation’s Auditor for the next year. 
This was SECONDED by Gerry Bullon. Motion 
CARRIED. 

 
7. General Business (10.2(f)). 

(a) Gerry Bullon announced Selwyn 
Greenberg as Chatan Torah for the year 
and Gerald Frank as Chatan Bereishit. 
He also announced “with great pride” 
Chatanut Torah would be Carmel 
Bridgeman and Chatanut Bereishit,  
Nicole Itescu. He advised that these 
members were extremely deserving of 
their honours and he was looking 
forward to celebrating Simchat Torah 
with them and their respective families.  
 

(b) Anton Block AM thanked Gerry Bullon 
for his work as President on behalf of 
the room. He advised that Gerry had 
done a fantastic job and nothing was 
too much trouble. Anton looked 
forward to continue to work with Gerry 
on the Board and in the choir. 

 
 
The President declared the meeting closed at 
9:00pm. 
 
Signed as a true and correct record. 
 
President ……………………………………………… 
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Member Statistics 

(1 April 2022 to 31 March 2023) 
 

Statistical Summary 

B’not Mitzvah 12 
B’nei Mitzvah 21 
Aufruffs 23 
Weddings conducted by our ministers 25 
Deaths of members 13 
New Members 45 
New Junior Members 17 
 
The lists over the next few pages have been compiled 
to the best of our ability. If, by oversight, we have 
omitted names, misspelt names or incorrectly listed 
names, we apologise. 
 

 
New Members 
Trinette Ambrose 
Joshua Frank Berlinski 
Joy Bloumis 
Darian Burstein 
Romy Burstein 
Lauren Cashmore 
Simon Ceber 
Linda Dessau AC 
Penny Fenner 
Zakary Morris Fleisher-Sharbanee 
Karyn Fookes 
Marcus Fookes 
Charlotte Catherine Gerhards 
Mark Glasman 
Jessie Hartman 
Nicole Hoffman 
Philip Hoffman 
Brandon Joel 
Jonathan Ian Klein 
Roxanne Kozica 
Joel Kuperholz 
Ani Landau-Ward 
Lynnece Le Bransky 
Jasmine Lichtenstein Featherston 
Natana Rina Mann 
Reuven Nahoom 
Annette Nankin 
Joseph Nankin 
Tamar Paluch 
Salomon Sacal 
Tamara Liat Saks 
David Shafer 
Lauren Shafer 
Karen Snow 
Matthew Snow 
Ross Snow 
Daniel Starr 
Jacqueline Tiepermann 
Cameron Harry Trijbetz 
Jeremy Urbach 
Sylvia Urbach 
Aleksandr Voskoboinik 
Lironne Wein 
Tamar Wein 
Barry Zimmerman 

New Junior Members 
Phoebe Cherny 
Hayden Featherston 
Holly Feldman 
Joshua Hoffman 
Oliver Hoffman 
Sierra Mattila 
Tzvi Mattila 
Mikael Sacal 
Joseph Samuell 
Rivkah Samuell 
Adam Shafer 
Amelia Shafer 
Ruby Shafer 
Sophia Shafer 
Ari Voskoboinik 
Benjamin Voskoboinik 
Ellie Voskoboinik 
 

Mazal Tovs 
1st April 2022 to 31st March 2023 
The following announcements were recorded in the 
weekly Shabbat Shalom. We apologise to anyone 
who may have been overlooked. 
 
Births 
Best wishes on the ‘new additions’ to their families: 
Esther & Adrian Bartak (grandson) 
Bonnie & Adrian Blashki (grandson) 
Romy & Darian Burstein (daughter) 
Louise & Mike Davis (son) 
Elise Den & Matthew Cullen (son) 
Luana & Anthony Felber (grandson) 
Andrea & Kevin Frank (Twin sons) 
Michelle & Frank Friedman (granddaughter) 
Daniel & Tatem Goldbloom (son) 
Kelly Heideman & Ilan Gordon (daughter) 
Amelia & Michael Hershan (daughter) 
Naomi & Anthony Honigman (twin children) 
Susan & Allan Kalus (granddaughter) 
Gabi Klein & Tom Fitzpatrick (daughter) 
Samantha & Craig Lasnitzki (daughter) 
Tammy & Daniel Lasnitzki (son) 
Aviva & Robbie Lew (daughter) 
Joan & Nat Luft (great grandson) 
Lindi Nankin & Zak Fleisher-Sharbenee (son) 
Helene and Michael Oberman (grandson and great 

grandson) 
Rachael Okun (daughter) 
Ari & Sarah Ritz (son) 
Annette & Maurice Sackville (great-grandson) 
Ruth Sackville (granddaughter) 
Ruth Sackville (great grandson) 
Judith Same (twin great-grandchildren) 
Judith Same (great grandson) 
Selma & Audrey Seknow (granddaughter) 
Monica & John Shalit (daughter) 
Daniel & Eileen Shap (daughter) 
Ann Sternfeld (granddaughter) 
Talia & Bryce Watson (daughter) 
Deli Winthrope & Jarred Slomoi (daughter) 
Leah & Leon Zimmet (grandson) 
Althea & Martin Zlotnick (grandson) 
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Bat Mitzvahs 
Mazel tov to the families of: 
Sienna Azoulay 
Ruby Cohen 
Ashley Degen 
Layla Fink 
Bella Furman 
Gemma Gunn 
Taylor Hampel 
Jemma Hauser 
Sophie Kolieb 
Isabelle Regan 
Orly Steinfeld 
Priya Zmood 
 
Bar Mitzvahs 
Mazel tov to the families of: 
Benjamin Aghion 
Orlando Cherny 
Theo Edelstein 
Gary Faiman 
Joshua Gillis 
Alexander Itescu 
Zabi Kalbstein 
Eden Klass 
Oliver Klinger 
Shane Kravietz 
Joshua Levy 
Felix Lopata 
Jaxson Mitchell 
Zac Onas 
Benjamin Regan 
Max Robin 
Ryder Rosengarten 
Joel Schimmel 
Noah Sher 
Ashton Whine 
Ashton Zohar 
 
Engagements 
Mazel tov to the families of: 
Erin Blashki & Sean Kozer 
Avital Braude & Ethan Picker 
Jemma Brown & Samuel Spicer 
Zoe Casper & Daniel Slomoi 
Malki Cowen & David Krupp 
Mia Friedman & Aidan Behrmann 
Tanna Goldberg & Jay Levy 
Jessie Gordon & Adam Lerner 
Sophie Hoffman & Ben Dascal 
Nitzan Lang & David Berlinski 
Leah Lewenstein & Sruly Nagel 
Andrea Lipshutz & Dean Goldstein 
Jade Maloon & Muchael Shalit 
Hannah Rosenfeld & Marc Listmangof 
Bethany Sackville & Joshua Kolski 
Zoe Wald & Daniel Fisher 
Samantha Worh & David Zwier 
Lyssy Yarrow & Jason Shadur 

Weddings 
Mazel tov to the families of: 
Zoe Alberts & Jonathan Sacks 
Carri Aronson & Jonathan Zimet 
Sima Barokas & Josh Montag 
Sarah Bass & Simon Spicer 
Jacqui Bell & Joel Davis 
Jemma Braun & Sam Spicer 
Zoe Casper & Daniel Slomoi 
Amanda Cowan & Michael Shafar 
Malki Cowen & David Krupp 
Tessa Faiman & Josh Ludski 
Maddie Gostin & Jared Hofman 
Sophie Harman & Alon Scheidlinger 
Ariella Heffernan Marks & Noah Keddie 
Sofie Hoffman & Ben Dascal 
Jacky Kleyman & Marcel Lanster 
Nadia Kusia & Gideon Sweet 
Yael Lefkovits & Joshua Berlinski 
Shari Leibler & Gary Wertheimer 
Tayla Levinthal & Alon Beder 
Leah Lewenstein & Sruly Nagel 
Leah Mand & Jonathan Zimmet 
Natana Mann & Jonathan Klein 
Rebecca Miselowski & Daniel Rotstein 
Lindi Nankin & Zak Fleisher-Shabamae 
Leanne Ruben & Ary Danilov 
Tamar Saks & Cameron Trijbetz 
Zarina Seksembaeva & Samuel Broder 
Andie Sternfeld & Jeremy Sher 
Lauren Thurin & Oliver Howard 
Zoe Wald & Daniel Fisher 
 
Condolences 
Our sincere condolences to the following members 
who have experienced a bereavement in their family: 
Tony Aarons (mother) 
Betty Benporath (husband) 
Cindy Berg (sister) 
Adrian Blashki (sister) 
Michael Cohen (brother) 
Faye Crossman (father) 
Robert Davis (brother) 
Beverley Edelstein (brother-in-law) 
Jeremy Epstein and Elissa Epstein (mother) 
Rita Fink (husband) 
Norman Gordon (sister) 
Susan Harrison (mother) 
Silviu Itescu (mother) 
Myra Kalinski (husband) 
Natalie Krapivensky (father) 
Kathy Lubosfky (father) 
Jonathan Markowitz (father) 
Maurice Mendel (wife) 
Susan Onas (husband) 
Helene Oberman (father) 
Dan Presser (mother) 
Philip Ress (mother) 
Morris Ritz (mother) 
Norman Same (mother) 
Golda Shulkes (husband) 
Nicole Silberberg (mother) 
Susan Snyder (mother) 
Ann Sternfeld (brother) 
Renee Super (mother) 
Lynda Tepper (mother) 



 

Annual Report 2023 25 

Membership List 
(As at 31 March 2023) 
 
This membership list has been compiled to the best of our ability. If, by oversight, we have omitted names, 
misspelt names or incorrectly listed names, we apologise and request that you contact our office as soon as 
possible. Four names have been redacted at the request of a family who do not wish to be publicly listed. 
 
Ellana Aarons 
Tony Aarons 
Esther Abizdris 
Daniel Adler 
Deborah Adler 
Michael Adler 
Eleanor Aghion 
Jack Aghion 
Pamela Aldouby 
Trinette Ambrose 
Daniel Arndtheim 
Geoffrey Arndtheim 
Jade Arndtheim 
Michael Aronson 
Michelle Aronson 
Dean Ashkenazy 
David Baer 
Bruce Baker 
Michelle Baker 
Natasha Bakshi 
Rosslyn Bancroft 
Megan Banky 
Evelyn Barnett 
Alexandra Baron 
Joshua Baron 
Natalie Baron 
Sasha Baron 
Stewart Baron 
Bradley Barr 
Cecile Barr 
Hilton Barr 
Meryl Barr 
Esther Bartak 
Adrian Bartak OAM 
Jacob David Basist 
Miriam Bass OAM 
Ruth Baxt 
Anne Bayer 
Vivienne Baytch 
Shelley Beder 
Deirdre Beiles 
Menachem Shilo Ben Ze'ev 
Neil Benary 
Suzanne Benary 
Barbara Benjamin 
Craig Benjamin 
Graeme Benjamin 
Michael Benjamin 
Elana Benporath 
Levi Benporath 
Cindy Berg 
John Berg 
Sabrina Berger 
Esther Berkovitch 
Graham Berkovitch 
Asher Berlinski 

Joshua Frank Berlinski 
Neil Berlinski 
Aaron Berman 
Desiree Berman 
Ivor Berman 
Judy Berman 
Sarena Berman 
Saul Berman 
David Besser 
Deirdre Beville 
Keith Beville 
Adam Bigos 
Benjamin Bigos 
Joshua Bigos 
Oren Bigos 
Jenny Bihary 
Adam Black 
Jonathan Black 
Leah Black 
Rozet Black 
Sharna Black 
Julian Black OAM 
Bonnie Blashki 
Leiba Blashki 
Samuel Blashki 
Susan Blashki 
Timothy Blashki 
Adrian Blashki 
Graham Blashki 
Grant Blashki 
Anna Blatman 
Lev Blinder 
Anton Block AM 
Daniel Block 
Jake Block 
Jessica Block 
Jodi Block 
Lana Block 
Martin Block 
Saul Block 
Barry Bloom 
David Bloom 
Lorraine Bloom 
Norman Bloom 
Pauline Bloom 
Rosetta Bloom 
Joy Bloumis 
Danny Blum 
Erica Blum 
Jordan Blum 
Tia Blum 
Aiden Bodek 
Jesse Bodek 
Natasha Bodek 
Eva Borowski 
Jessica Bram 

Stanley Brasch 
Anne Braude 
Carmel Bridgeman 
Edward Bridgeman 
Dione Brint 
Robert Brint 
Samuel Broder 
Sonia Brodman 
Andrej Brodsky 
Amanda Brown 
Jeremy Brown 
Lorette Brown 
Malcolm Brown 
Suzanne Brown OAM 
Henry Buch 
Rachelle Buchbinder AO 
Adrienne Buchner 
Charles Buchner 
Lisa Buchner 
Simon Buchner 
Wayne Buchner 
Madeleine Buchner OAM 
Anne Budlender 
Clive Budlender 
Judy Bulafkin 
Malcolm Bulafkin 
Gerald Bullon 
Darian Burstein 
Romy Burstein 
Alex Burstin 
Georgia Burstin 
Karen Burstin 
Olivia Burstin 
Tania Burstin 
Lauren Cashmore 
Andrew Casper 
Carol Casper 
David Casper 
Hannah Casper 
Louise Casper 
Melissa Casper 
Mia Casper 
Michelle Casper 
Oscar Casper 
Peter Casper 
Russell Casper 
Sally Casper 
Steven Casper 
Tim Casper 
Zoe Casper 
Lindy Castan-Blashki 
David Castelan 
Dion Castelan 
Jill Castelan 
Justin Castelan 
Simon Ceber 

Ann Cebon-Glass 
Erica Cervini 
Joanna Chalfon 
Stephen Chemke 
Chloe Cherny 
Dean Cherny 
Phoebe Cherny 
Tanya Cherny 
Paulette Cherny OAM 
Naomi Ciddor 
Tessa Clemans 
Leslie Clemans 
Adrian Clifford 
Marian Clifford 
Antony Cohen 
Ashley Cohen 
Bailey Cohen 
Barbara Cohen 
Benjamin Cohen 
Boyd Cohen 
Caroline Cohen 
Dahlia Cohen 
Daniel Cohen 
Debbie Cohen 
Donna Cohen 
Evelyn Cohen 
Florence Cohen 
Grant Cohen 
Gregory Cohen 
Hannah Cohen 
Harley Cohen 
Heather Cohen 
Helen Cohen 
Jessica Cohen 
Karen Cohen 
Leanna Cohen 
Marina Cohen 
Marlene Cohen 
Nicholas Cohen 
Paul Cohen 
Peter Cohen 
Rachel Cohen 
Ruby Cohen 
Susan Cohen 
Timothy Cohen 
Tyler Cohen 
Peter Cohen AM 
Trevor Cohen AM 
Michael Cohen OAM 
David Cook 
Eva Cook 
Kate Cookes 
Howard Cooklin 
Marianne Cooklin 
Jamie Cross 
Sally Cross 
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Faye Crossman 
Susan Danglow 
Diane Davidson 
Kevin Davidson 
Danielle Davis 
Ellie Davis 
Elouise Davis 
Jack Davis 
Jeremy Davis 
Jeremy Davis 
Joel Davis 
Laura Davis 
Laurance Davis 
Mark Davis 
Michael Davis 
Robert Davis 
Sally Davis 
Yvonne Davis 
Stephen Davis AO 
Ian Davis OAM 
Jeffrey Degen 
Antony de Jong 
Eva de Jong 

Adam Den 
Michael Den 
Linda Dessau AC 
Maurice Dobia 
Vivien Dobia 
Harold Donsky 
Linda Donsky 
Gideon Dorevitch 
Margaret Dorevitch 
Brett Ebedes 
Jodi Eben 
Peter Eben 
Bella Edelman 
Robert Edelman 
Beverley Edelstein 
Simon Edelstein 
Skye Olivia Edelstein 
Theo Edelstein 
David Eden 
Martin Eden 
John Eisner 
Aiden Elbaz 
Eleanor Elbaz 
Zoe Elbaz 
Abraham Engel 
Rosemary Engel 
Elissa Epstein 
Freda Epstein 
Jeremy Epstein 
Shahaf Epstein 
Sydney Epstein 
Family Epstein-Gaddie 
Helga Erlanger 
Helen Erlich 
Noel Erlich 
Rachel Erlich 
Evelyn Erlichster 
George Erlichster 
Harry Ernest 
Evelyn Fabian 
Garry Fabian OAM 

Caitlin Faiman 
Guy Faiman 
Joshua Faiman 
Keith Faiman 
Marilyn Faiman 
Mitchell Faiman 
Nathan Faiman 
Paul Faiman 
Tessa Faiman 
Hayden Featherston 
Kenneth Fehily 
Liora Romi Feiler 
Peter Felbel 
Ruth Felbel 
Anthony Felber 
Joan Felber 
Luana Felber 
Dan Feldman 
Dustin Feldman 
Elissa Feldman 
Holly Feldman 
Elissa Feldman 
Penny Fenner 
Alexander Field 
Gary Fink 
Karen Fink 
Layla Fink 
Leana Fink 
Leo Fink 
Mark Fink 
Peter Fink 
Rita Fink 
Alan Finkel AC 
Elizabeth Finkel AM 
Marian Finkelstein 
Daniel Fisher 
Louise Fisher 
Steven Fisher 
Charles Flanc 
Patricia Flanc 
Zakary Morris Fleisher-

Sharbanee 
Glenda Flinkier 
Jamie Flinkier 
Joe Flinkier 
Karyn Fookes 
Marcus Fookes 
Jeanette Fox 
John Fox 
Anthony Frajman 
Charlotte Frajman 
Marcus Frajman 
Russell Frajman 
Darryl Frank 
Eleanor Frank 
Gerald Frank 
Kevin Frank 
Kerryn Frankel 
Clive Fredman 
Joel Fredman 
Lorice Fredman 
Linda Freedman 
Moishe Freedman 
Joshua Freidin 

Tonia Freidin 
Annabelle Edie Frenkiel 
Marita Frenkiel 
Sally Frenkiel 
Alix Friedman 
David Friedman 
Frank Friedman 
Nicky Friedman 
Raema Friedman 
Shirley Friedman 
Simon Friedman 
Tommy Friedman 
Trevor Friedman 
Emma Furman 
Eileen Gamzuletova 
Lesley Gaspar 
Boris Gelberg 
Margaret Gelberg 
Ron Gelberg 
Charlotte Catherine 

Gerhards 
Caleb Gering 
Corbin Gering 
Duncan Gering 
Leo Gering 
Mark Gerstel 
Nicholas Gerstel 
Taya Gerstel 
Kelly Gillis 
Charlie Gladwin 
Harrison Gladwin 
Joshua Gladwin 
Rosalyn Gladwin 
Mark Glasman 
Ellie Gleedman 
Raphael Gleedman 
Ruth Gleedman 
Alex Godler 
Anne Goldberg 
Anthony Goldberg 
Denise Goldberg 
Ella Goldberg 
Gideon Goldberg 
Howard Goldberg 
Jack Goldberg 
Larissa Goldberg 
Marian Goldberg 
Rachel Goldberg 
Deena Goldbloom 
Lauren Goldbloom 
Rodney Goldbloom 
Simeon Goldenberg 
Beata Goldman 
Daniel Goldman 
Danny Goldman 
Ilana Goldman 
John Goldman 
Lauren Goldman 
Rebecca Goldman 
Samantha Goldman 
Sandra Goldman 
Danny Goldsmith 
Janice Goldsmith 
Jonathan Goldsmith 

Myrna Goldsmith 
Rodney Goldsmith 
Sally Goldsmith 
Joshua Goldstat 
Miron Goldwasser 
Ruth Goldwasser 
Ann Goodrich 
Michael Goodwach 
Adam Gordon 
Amy Gordon 
Antony Gordon 
Geoffrey Gordon 
Nikki Gordon 
Norman Gordon 
Rita Gordon 
Benjamin Gore 
Boaz Gore 
Linda Gore 
Robert Gore 
Timna Gore 
Jonathon Green 
Karen Green 
Louise Green 
Michael Green 
Noah Green 
Hannah Greenberg 
Jay Greenberg 
Selwyn Greenberg 
Eve Grimm 
Jane Gross 
Tal Eyal Grunberg 
Adam Guest 
Chloe Guest 
Esther Guest 
Georgia Guest 
Joshua Guest 
Tarryn Guest 
Amanda Gunn 
Coby Gunn 
Daniel Gunn 
Gemma Gunn 
Gideon Gunn 
Jethro Gunn 
Kylie Gunn 
Lorri Gunn 
Miriam Gunn 
Roslyn Gunn 
Ryan Gunn 
Luba Gurarie 
Valery Natan Gurarie 
Andrea Guss 
Charli Guss 
Chloe Guss 
Andrew Gutwirth 
Gina Gutwirth 
Len Hain 
Harry Hakman 
Reuben Hall 
Ruth Hall 
Sue Hallenstein 
Harold Hallenstein AM 
Elfi Halphen 
Amanda Hampel 
Jobie Otto Hampel 
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Max Hampel 
Ronnie Hampel 
Ruth Hampel 
Siena Giselle Hampel 
Taylor Lexi Hampel 
Zane Baron Hampel 
Suzanne Hampel OAM 
Rosemary Harris 
Ruth Harris 
Steven Harris 
Vivienne Harris 
Andrew Harrison 
Bruce Harrison 
Emma Harrison 
Susan Harrison 
Jessie Hartman 
Anthony Hauser 
Ashley Hauser 
Jemma Hauser 
Nadine Hauser 
Toby Hauser 
Brendan Hayman 
Kim Hayman 
Lachlan Hayman 
Natalie Hayman 
Noah Hayman 
Don Heideman 
Lorraine Heilbrunn 
Robert Heilbrunn 
Harry Hendel 
Mark Hendel 
Peter Hendel 
Ron Hendel 
Daniel Joshua Hershan 
Gary Hershan 
Natalie Hershan 
Nicholas Hershan 
Ruth Hershan 
Alan Herskope 
Jack Herskope 
Michael Herskope 
Nicolas Herskope 
Vanessa Herskope 
Norma Hertz 
Harry Hertz 
Annette Hines 
Jack Hines 
Joshua Hoffman 
Julius Hoffman 
Nicole Hoffman 
Oliver Hoffman 
Philip Hoffman 
Susan Hoffman 
Annette Honigman 
Roberta Honigman 
Oliver Howard 
Frances Hyams 
Ethne Iloni 
Janice Iloni-Furstenberg 
Arlene Isaacs 
Ian Isaacs 
Melanie Isaacs 
Sandra Isaacs 
Alexander Itescu 

Isaac Itescu 
Nicole Itescu 
Silviu Itescu 
Gary Jackson 
Livia Jackson 
Nicole Jacobs 
Lisa Jacobson 
Rhonda Jacobson 
Lynette Jacobson-Joseph 
Barbara Jaffe 
Madeleine Jaffe 
Peter Jaffe 
David Joachim 
Andrew Joel 
Brandon Joel 
Craig Joel 
Dean Joel 
Toni Joel 
Arlene Joffe 
Benjamin Joffe 
Brian Joffe 
Debi Joffe 
Isabelle Joffe 
Justin Joffe 
Lindsey Joffe 
Natalie Joffe 
Natasha Joffe 
Stephen Joffe 
Steven Joffe 
Diana Joseph 
Ian Joseph 
Jeremy Kagan 
Mark Kagan 
Samuel Kagan 
Sara Kagan 
Thomas Kagan 
Asher Kaicer 
Joan Kaicer 
Myra Kalinski 
Ari Kalmek 
Gabriel Kalmek 
Hazel Kalmek 
Mervyn Kalmek 
Alicia Kalus 
Allan Kalus 
Henry Kalus 
Jasmine Kalus 
Sarah Kalus 
Susan Kalus 
Naomi Kanichowsky 
Benjamin Karliner 
Sarah Karliner 
Daniel Jack Kaufman 
Harley Ryan Kaufman 
Ian Kaufman 
Jed Elliott Kaufman 
Joseph Kaufman 
Rifka Kaufman 
Tori Kausman 
Aaron Kay 
Celine Kay 
James Kay 
Michael Kay 
Mindy Kay 

Benjamin Kaye 
Emma Kaye 
Matthew Kaye 
Robert Kaye 
Ruth Kaye 
Valerie Kaye 
Teena Kay-Class 
Elise Kelemen 
Jonathan Kenny 
Nicole Kenny 
Emma Kessell 
Joshua Kessell 
Leanne Kessell 
Geoffrey Kirschner 
Janene Kirschner 
Samantha Kirszner 
Debra Kiven 
Ronald Kiven 
Tara Kiven 
Evelyn Klaf 
Yuri Klaf 
Eden Klass 
Adam Klein 
Barbara Klein 
Emma Klein 
Gabi-Leigh Klein 
Jonathan Ian Klein 
Karen Klein 
Louis Klein 
Sharon Klein 
Steven Klein 
Arthur Klepfisz 
Daniel Klepfisz 
Marianne Klepfisz 
Heather Klineberg 
Adam Klooger 
Dion Klooger 
Nicole Klooger 
David Koadlow 
Daniel Kolieb 
David Kolieb 
Gabriel Kolieb 
Myrel Kolieb 
Jaia Komornick 
Teal Komornick 
Debbie Kopel 
Nathan Kopel 
Janet Korman 
Richard Kornhauser 
Ryan Kornhauser 
Connor Kotzman 
Debbie Kotzman 
Lindsay Kotzman 
Paul Kovacs 
Sylvia Kovacs 
Roxanne Kozica 
Jacob Krampel 
Libby Krampel 
Marcia Krampel 
Noah Krampel 
Sherrie Krampel 
Simon Krampel 
Joseph Krampel AM 
Natalie Krapivensky 

Rebecca Krass 
Jessica Krulis 
Lorelle Krulis 
Thomas Krulis 
Bernhard Krupp 
Lynette Krupp 
Joel Kuperholz 
Judy Landau 
Ani Landau-Ward 
Annie Landy 
David Landy 
Anita Lange 
Georgia Lange 
John Lange 
Alan Lasnitzki 
Brenda Lasnitzki 
Craig Lasnitzki 
Milton Lasnitzki 
Daniel Lazarovits 
Mark Lazarovits 
Ronald Lazarovits 
Sharon Lazarovits 
Anthony Le Bransky 
Lynnece Le Bransky 
Shirley Le Bransky 
Graeme Le Bransky 
Carlos Lechtman 
Robyn Lenga 
Esbeth Lentin 
Robert Lentin 
Ruth Leonard 
Grahame Leonard AM 
Jacqueline Lerner 
Philip Lerner 
Romi Sarah Lerner 
Adam Leski 
Solomon Leski 
Bruce Levin 
Jennifer Levin 
Noel Levin OAM 
Andrew Levy 
Barry Levy 
Benjamin Levy 
Brian Levy 
Bruce Levy 
Daniel Levy 
Darren Levy 
Dina Levy 
Graeme Levy 
Isabel Levy 
Jeremy Levy 
Jordan Levy 
Joshua Noah Levy 
Judith Levy 
Kay Levy 
Leah Levy 
Leila Levy 
Linda Levy 
Mia Ashley Levy 
Michael Levy 
Michelle Levy 
Mina Levy 
Nicole Levy 
Patricia Levy 



28 St Kilda Hebrew Congregation 

Philip Levy 
Rhonda Levy 
Robin Levy 
Ros Levy 
Russell Levy 
Tanya Levy 
Wayne Levy 
Wayne Levy 
Leonard Levy OAM 
Frank Levy 
Julie Lew 
Rebecca Lew 
Solomon Lew 
Susan Lew 
Graeme Lewis 
Sandra Lewis 
Robbie Lewkowicz 
Frank Lichtenstein 
Marc Lichtenstein 
Paul Lichtenstein 
Susan Lichtenstein 
Thalia Lichtenstein 
Jasmine Lichtenstein 

Featherston 
Jeanette Liebmann 
Jeffrey Lipshutz 
Judy Lipshutz 
Leon Lopata 
Anne Marie Lopez 
Danielle Lorkin 
Ruby Lorkin 
Janet Lovett 
Brian Luber 
Colin Luber 
Raphael Peter Luber 
Tamara Esther Luber 
Andrew Lubofsky 
Freda Lubransky 
Gary Lubransky 
Joan Luft 
Nathan Luft 
Michaela Lustman 
James Maddock 
Jesse Maddock 
Liza Maddock 
Natana Rina Mann 
Lev Margolin 
Claire Markov 
Jonathan Markowitz 
Alan Marks 
Alan G Marks 
Bernard Marks 
Brian Marks 
Daniel Marks 
Joyce Marks 
Judith Marks 
Katie Marks 
Margaret Marks 
Samuel Marks 
Stephen Marks OAM 
David Marlow 
Caroline Marshall 
Roslyn Marshall 
Editta Matessi 

Len Matthews 
Roslyn Matthews 
Sierra Mattila 
Tzvi Mattila 
Alick Mazin 
Tayla Meerkin 
Thelma Meerkin 
Alan Mendel 
Maurice Mendel 
Stephen Mendel 
Tanya Mendel 
Bernice Mereine 
Richard Mereine 
Barry Michaels 
David Milan 
Patricia Milan 
Estelle Miller 
Michael Miller 
Daniel Millman 
Ethan Millman 
Julian Millman 
Alan Miltz 
Kerryn Miltz 
Oscar Miltz 
Mark Mitchell 
Boris Mitelman 
Jenna Mitelman 
Joshua Mitelman 
Aiden Mitsel 
Lachlan Mitsel 
Aimee Mizrahi 
Ivan Moldovan 
Jade Moldovan 
Linda Moldovan 
Shorna Moore 
Tatum Moore 
Ben Morawetz 
Benjamin Morley 
Rodney Morley 
Sandra Morley 
Carly Morris 
David Munz 
Jennifer Munz 
Sylvia Munz 
Philip Munz AM 
Anabella Nachumow 
Aaron Nadler 
Anat Nadler 
Peter Nadler 
Reuven Nahoom 
Allan Nahum 
Annette Nankin 
Cameron Nankin 
Hayden Nankin 
Jarrod Nankin 
Joseph Nankin 
Lindi Nankin 
Adam Nathan 
Alana Nathan 
Andrew Nathan 
Beverley Nathan 
Cyril Nathan 
Daniel Nathan 
Denise Nathan 

Jack Nathan 
Keith Nathan 
Kiara Nathan 
Mark Nathan 
Steven Nathan 
Kathryn Nathan 
Deanne Nestadt 
Ernest Nestadt 
Esther Nestadt 
Kevin Nestadt 
Robbie Nestadt 
Andrew Nissen 
Pearl Nissen 
Jill Nunn 
Helene Oberman 
Igor Oizerovitch 
Samuel Oizerovitch 
Daniel Onas 
Davina Onas 
Frances Ostroburski 
Sam Ostroburski 
Reuben Pahoff 
Delysia Pahoff OAM 
Tamar Paluch 
Emily Pask 
Joshua Pask 
Sandra Pask 
Judy Perlstein 
Kate Perlstein 
Philip Perlstein 
Lauren Phillips 
Rodney Phillips 
Gary Pianko 
Joshua Pianko 
Stacy Pianko 
Dora Picker 
Ethan Picker 
Larry Picker 
Ruth Picker AM 
Francine Pinch 
Stephen Pinch 
David Pinkus 
Jeremey Pitt 
Lisa Pitt 
Romy Pitt 
Daniel Platt 
David Platt 
Jonathan Platt 
Susanna Platt 
Benjamin Polonsky 
Daniel Polonsky 
David Polonsky 
Jacqueline Polonsky 
Jonathan Polonsky 
Linda Polonsky 
Gideon Poratt 
Nathan Poratt 
Raphael Poratt 
Harry Pose 
Lena Pose 
Anthony Pratt 
Jeanne Pratt 
Leon Revere Pratt 
Lilly Pratt 

Bram Presser 
Daniel Presser 
Eva Presser 
Sarah Psomotragos 
Leon Pulverman 
Allie Pura 
Coby Pura 
Evelyn Pura 
Jeffrey Pura 
Jonathan Pura 
Tammy Pura 
Keith Pynt 
Ashley Raboy 
Barry Raboy 
Dana Raboy 
Sara Raboy 
Eden Ramler 
Elliot Ramler 
Patricia (Trish) Ramler 
Paul Ramler AM 
Elizabeth Sarah Ravech 
Bradley Reichenberg 
Jonathan Reichenberg 
Michelle Reichenberg 
Samantha Reichenberg 
Steven Reichenberg 
Gideon Reisner 
Philip Ress 
Claudine Revere 
Kim Richwol 
Danny Rischin 
Ariel Ritz 
Eitan Ritz 
Gilad Ritz 
Morris Ritz 
Emma Robenstone 
Harry Robenstone 
Peter Robenstone 
Richie Robenstone 
Sara Robenstone 
Sydney Robenstone 
Tiger Robenstone 
Lynette Rose 
Jodie Rose Grant 
Arnold Rose 
David Rose 
Alison Roseby 
Aiden Rosenbaum 
David Rosenbaum 
Jake Oliver Rosenbaum 
Jeremy Rosenbaum 
Lauren Rosenbaum 
Simon Rosenbaum 
Barry Rosenberg 
Emma Rosenberg 
Jarrod Rosenberg 
Marnie Rosenberg 
Sara Rosenberg 
Talia Rosenberg Birkett 
Robin Rosenblatt 
Alexander Rosenfeld 
Deborah Rosenfeld 
Hannah Rosenfeld 
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Jeffrey Rosenfeld AC OBE 

KStJ 

Michele Rosenfield 
Gary Rosenfield 
Alan Rosengarten 
Casey Rosengarten 
James Rosengarten 
Jasmine Rosengarten 
Kenneth Rosengarten 
Lyndall Rosengarten 
Roslyn Rosengarten 
Sandra Rosengarten 
Brian Rosengarten OAM 
Jeremy Rosens 
Micheline Rosens 
Ryder Rosens 
Evelyn Rosenthal 
Paul Rosenthal 
Adam Rosham 
Benjamin Rosham 
Joshua Rosham 
Noah Rosham 
Greg Rosshandler 
Nigel Rostovsky 
Sam Rotberg 
George Roth 
Katie Rotstein 
Toby Rotstein 
Deena Harli Rozen 
Tia Jayde Rozen 
Cassie Rozental 
Isaac Rozental 
Paul Rozental 
Rochelle Rozental 
Brenda Ruben 
Mervyn Ruben 
Karen Rubenstein 
Steven Rubenstein 
David Rubinek 
George Rubinek 
Helen Rubinek 
Lori Rubinek 
Susannah Rubinek 
Adam Rubinstein 
Bonnie Rubinstein 
Gary Rubinstein 
Hylton Rubinstein 
Joshua Rubinstein 
Garry Rudzki 
Adam Rushford 
Marshall Rushford 
Sarah Rushford 
Sharon Rushford 
Hayley Rynderman 
John Rynderman 
Megan Rynderman OAM 
Mikael Sacal 
Salomon Sacal 
David Sacho 
Adam Sacks 
Barbara Sacks 
Elissa Sacks 
Emmy Sarah Sacks 
Jonathan ( J.J.) Sacks 

Lester Sacks 
Michael Sacks 
Raye Sacks 
Stanley Sacks 
Steven Sacks 
Tobie Sacks 
Annette Sackville 
Arnold Sackville 
Maurice Sackville 
Ruth Sackville 
Noah Benjamin Sainui 
Gillian Saker 
Tamara Liat Saks 
Daniel Salfas 
Esther Same 
Kate Same 
Michael Same 
Norman Same 
Grant Samuel 
Jeremy Samuel 
Kerrin Samuel 
Leonard Samuel 
Lynne Samuel 
Nathan Samuel 
Rachel Samuel 
Yasmin Allegra Samuel 
James Samuel 
Joseph Samuell 
Rivkah Samuell 
Lois Sandor 
Steven Sandor 
Hanni Scelwyn 
Julian Scelwyn 
Mark Schatz 
Brett Schewitz 
Tanya Schewitz 
Jeremy Schimmel 
Jennie Schoenfeld 
Julius Schoenfeld 
Michael Schoenfeld 
Bennie Schreiber 
Adam Schwab 
Eric Schwab 
Margot Schwab 
Mary Schwartz 
Bradley Schwarz 
Michelle Schwarz 
Max Schwarz AM 
Robyne Schwarz AM 
Eliora Segal 
Gabriel Segal 
Reeva Segal 
Reny Segal 
Aubrey Seknow 
Selma Seknow 
Adam Serry 
Anna Serry 
David Serry 
Leon Serry 
Naomi Serry 
Vivienne Serry 
Leon Serry AM 
Carolyn Shadur 
Adam Shafer 

Amelia Shafer 
David Shafer 
Lauren Shafer 
Ruby Shafer 
Sophia Shafer 
Benjamin Shafir 
Danny Shafir 
Jonathan Shafir 
Nathan Shafir OAM 
Michail Shalit 
John Shalit OAM 
Dennis Shandler 
Elaine Shandler 
Daniel Shap 
David Shap 
Merle Shap 
Lorraine Shapiro 
Andrew Sharp 
Barbara Sharp 
Joshua Sharp 
Joshua Sharp 
Maxine Sharp 
Mitchell Sharp 
Tracy Sharp 
Vincent Sharp 
Simon Shepes 
Simone Shepes 
Amber Shostak 
Bradley Shostak 
Jacob Shostak 
Louise Shostak 
Stephen Shostak 
Golda Shulkes 
Maureen Shulsinger 
Zvi Shulsinger 
Barbara Shuster 
Simon Shuster 
Leora Sifris 
Raymond Sifris 
Michael Silberberg 
Nicole Silberberg 
Gordon Silverman 
Jason Silverstein 
Joel Silverstein 
Matthew Silverstein 
Michael Silverstein 
Rosalie Silverstein OAM 
Eric Simms 
Judy Simms 
Helen Simon 
Ron Singal 
Ann Singer 
Arnold Singer 
Arten Singer 
Rochelle Skurnik 
Yvette Skurnik 
Adam Slomoi 
Amanda Slomoi 
Daniel Slomoi 
Gabriella Slomoi 
Hedley Slomoi 
Jason Slomoi 
Joshua Slomoi 
Kevin Slomoi 

Laurence Slomoi 
Lindy Slomoi 
Suzanne Slomoi 
Teegan Slomoi 
Beth Slutzkin 
Erica Slutzkin 
John Slutzkin 
Keren Slutzkin 
Matthew Slutzkin 
Nathan Slutzkin 
Toby Slutzkin 
Karen Snow 
Matthew Snow 
Ross Snow 
Susan Snyder 
Jack Solomon 
Paul Solomon 
Suede Solomon 
Philip Solomon KC 
Aimee Southwick 
Paul Southwick 
Suzanne Southwick 
Wayne Southwick 
Graeme Southwick OAM 
Deena Spektor 
Jay Spektor 
Remy Spektor 
Lindy Spicer 
Maurice Spicer 
Samuel Spicer 
Tatum Spicer 
Deborah Stanton 
Daniel Starr 
Victor Starr 
Barbara Steinberg 
Jack Steiner 
Ann Sternfeld 
Harold Sternfeld 
Justin Sternfeld 
Tracie Sternfeld 
Boyd Strauss 
Debbi Streager 
Martin Streager 
Michele Streager 
Christina Sun-Edelstein 
Melanie Super 
Norman Super 
Renee Super 
Eden Super Cohen 
Jade Super Cohen 
Rick Susman 
Annette Sweet 
Brian Swersky 
Leah Swersky 
Ariel Tenenberg 
Eden Tenenberg 
Jan Tenenberg 
Lynda Tepper 
David Tepper 
Steven Terkel 
Suzanne Terkel 
Andrew Thurin 
Lauren Thurin 
Lisa Thurin 
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Michael Thurin 
David Thurin AM 
Jacqueline Tiepermann 
Emma Tisher 
Ilana Tisher 
Jonathan Tisher 
Miriam Tisher 
Ruth Tisher 
Simon Tisher 
Tammy Tisher 
Frank Tisher OAM 
Caryn Tocker 
Abe Tomas 
Janet Tomas 
Natalie Tomas 
Paul Topol 
Rita Trakhtman 
Ari Trayer 
Jesse Trayer 
Samana Trayer 
Adam Trayer 
Cameron Harry Trijbetz 
Millianna Uchitel 
Rachelle Unreich 
Jeremy Urbach 
Sylvia Urbach 
Carly Velik 
Leon Velik 
Linda Velik 
Roger Velik 
Sandra Velik 
Julia Diana Vidor 
David Vinson 
Neil Vinson 

Sandi Vinson-
Bromberger 

Aleksandr Voskoboinik 
Ari Voskoboinik 
Benjamin Voskoboinik 
Ellie Voskoboinik 
Michael Wachtel 
Gabby Walters 
Simon Walters 
Lionel Walvisch 
Sandra Walvisch 
Leonard Warson 
Bryce Watson 
Marlene Watson 
Mervin Watson 
Alison Wayburne 
Bianca Sharni Wayburne 
Claudia Suzie Wayburne 
Michael Wayburne 
Lironne Wein 
Tamar Wein 
Allan Weissman 
Coco Weissman 
David Weissman 
Lilly Weissman 
Shirley Weissman 
Woody Weissman 
Natalie Weissman OAM 
Roy Weitzman 
Anthony Wertheimer 
Eleanor Wertheimer 
Francine Wertheimer 
Gary Wertheimer 
Michaela Wertheimer 

Rael Wertheimer 
Mary Werther 
Rebecca Werther 
George Werther AO 
Desley Winer 
Alexandra Wingreen 
Eliza Wingreen 
Julian Wise 
Lyndon Wise 
Michelle Wise 
Paul Wise 
Shirley Wise 
Tania Wittner 
Helen Wodak 
Jonathan Wolfe 
Barbara Wolfson 
Lesley Wolfson 
Lea Woolf 
Rohan Woolf 
Beau Worth 
David Worth 
Isabella Worth 
Jacqueline Worth 
Jennifer Worth 
Nancy Worth 
Ralph Worth 
Robyn Worth 
Steven Worth 
Alexander Yusupov 
Benjamin Yusupov 
Irina Yusupov 
Isabella Yusupov 
Allyne Zamel 
Stephen Zamel 

Diana Zelig 
Liam Ze'evi 
Allan Zimet 
Elizabeth Zimet 
Emilie Zimet 
Jeremy Zimet 
Jonathan Zimet 
Julie Zimet 
Lily Zimet 
Marilyn Zimet 
Phillippe Zimet 
Barry Zimmerman 
Harry Zimmet 
Hendrik Zimmet 
Jonathan Zimmet 
Leah Zimmet 
Leon Zimmet 
Lisa Zimmet 
Miriam Zimmet 
Vivien Zimmet 
Paul Zimmet AO 
Elon Zlotnick 
Martin Zlotnick 
Bronwyn Zmood 
Daniel Zmood 
Tanya Zohar 
Carl Zufi 
Jemma Zuker 
Lachlan Zuker 
Lana Zuker 
Mark Zuker 
David Zwier 
Leon Zwier 
Rebecca Zwier
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Yom Tov Service times 2023 
5783-5784 

 
 
Shabbat 9 Sep – Nitzavim-Vayelech 
 Shacharit (Shule) Bar Mitzvah: Zev Eretz 9.00am 
Shabbat ends 6.44pm 
 
HENRY SHAW ORATION 10.30pm 
followed by CHORAL SELICHOT  midnight 
These will be at Caulfield Shule led by Chazzanim 
Dov Farkas and Brett Kaye and accompanied by 
the Kolot Min Hashamayim Israeli choir. 
 
Sunday 10 Sep 
 Shacharit 8.00am 
 
Monday 11 – Friday 15 Sep 
 Selichot/Shacharit 6.45am 
 
Friday 15 Sep – EREV ROSH HASHANAH 
  Candle lighting 5.52pm 
 Minchah/Yom Tov Ma’ariv (Shule) 6.00pm 
 
Shabbat 16 Sep – 1st Day R. HASHANAH 
 Shacharit (Shule/ASC) No Shofar 8am/8:30am 
Reading the Torah (Shule/ASC) 9:30am/10:00am 
Sermon (Shule/ASC)not before 10:20am/10:45am 
 Musaf (Shule/ASC) 10:50am/11:10am 
Anticipated end (Shule/ASC) 12:30pm/12:50pm 
 
 Minchah/Yom Tov Ma’ariv (Shule) 6.00pm 
  Candle lighting AFTER 6.50pm 
 
Sunday 17 Sep – 2nd Day R. HASHANAH 
 Shacharit (Shule only) 8:00am 
Reading the Torah (Shule only) 9:30am 
Sermon (Shule only) not before 10:15am 
Shofar (Shule only) 10:30am 
 Musaf (Shule only) 11:00am 
Anticipated end (Shule only) 12:45pm 
 
Yom Tov ends 6.51pm 
 
Monday 18 Sep – FAST OF GEDALIAH 
Fast commences 4.55am 
 Selichot/Shacharit (Shule) 6.45am 
Fast ends 6.39pm 
 
Tuesday 19 - Friday 22 Sep 
 Selichot/Shacharit (Shule) 6.45am 
Fri 22 Sep   Candle lighting 5.58pm 
 Minchah/Kabbalat Shabbat (Shule) 6.00pm 
 
Shabbat 23 Sep – Ha’azinu/Shuvah 
 Shacharit (Shule) 9.00am 
Shabbat ends 6.56pm 
 
Sunday 24 Sep – EREV YOM KIPPUR 
 Selichot/Shacharit (Shule) 8.00am 
 
 Minchah (DC) 2.00pm 
 
 Rebbetzin Sara’s  Candle lighting (DC) 5.45pm 
  Candle lighting/fast begins 5.59pm 
 Kol Nidrei (Shule & ASC) 6:00pm 

 
Monday 25 Sep – YOM KIPPUR 
 Shacharit (Shule & ASC) 9:00am 
Reading the Torah (Shule/ASC) 11:00am/10:50am 
Sermon (Shule/ASC) 11:35am/11:15am 
Yizkor (Shule & ASC) 11:50am 
 Musaf (Shule/ASC) 12:15pm/12:30pm 
Break (Shule & ASC) 2:30pm 
 
 Minchah (Shule only) 3.45pm 
Sermon (Shule only) 5.15pm 
 Neilah (Shule only) 5.30pm 
 Ma’ariv (Shule only) 6.45pm 
Shofar and Fast ends 7.00pm 
 
Tuesday 26 Sep 
 Shacharit (Shule) 6.59am (1min earlier) 
 
Wednesday 27 Sep 
 Shacharit (Shule) 7.00am 
 
Thursday 28 Sep 
 Shacharit (Shule) 6.45am 
 
Friday 29 Sep – EREV SUKKOT/G’ FINAL HOLIDAY 
 Shacharit (Shule) 8.00am 
 
 Minchah/Yom Tov Ma’ariv (Shule) 6.00pm 
  Candle lighting 6.04pm 
 
Shabbat 30 Sep – 1st Day SUKKOT 
 Shacharit (Shule) 9.00am 
Hallel followed by Torah Reading approx. 9.30am 
 
 Minchah/Ma’ariv (Shule) 6.00pm 
  Candle lighting AFTER 7.02pm 
 

Daylight Savings commences 
 
Sunday 1 Oct– 2nd Day SUKKOT 
 Shacharit (Shule) 9.00amDST 
Hallel followed by Torah Reading appr. 9.30amDST 
Yom Tov ends 8.03pmDST 
 
CHOL HAMOED SUKKOT 
Monday 2 - Thursday 5 Oct 
 Shacharit with Hallel (Shule) 6.45am 
 
Friday 6 Oct – HOSHANAH RABBAH 
 Shacharit with Hallel (Shule) 6.45am 
 Minchah/Yom Tov Ma’ariv (Shule) 6.00pm 
  Candle lighting 7.10pm 
 
Shabbat 7 Oct – SH’MINI ATZERET 
 Shacharit 9.00am 
Hallel followed by Torah Reading approx. 9.30am 
Yizkor followed by Musaph not before 10.15am 
 
Shabbat 7 Oct – EREV SIMCHAT TORAH 
Children’s Simchat Torah Party 5.00pm 
 Minchah 6.00pm 
 Yom Tov Ma’ariv AFTER 6.14pm 
  Candle lighting AFTER 8.09pm 
 
Sunday 8 Oct – SIMCHAT TORAH 
 Shacharit (Shule) 9.00am 
Hallel approx. 9.30am 
Hakafot approx. 9.40am 
Yom Tov ends 8.10pm 
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St Kilda Hebrew Congregation Inc.
ABN: 26 428 090 013

Income Statement
For the Year Ended 31 March 2023

2023

$

2022

$

INCOME

Bar Mitzvah, bat mitzvah, weddings and funeral fees 40,115 39,066

Bequests and donations 57,089 33,677

Choir performances 300 -

Functions and activities 47,993 68,258

Hire of hall and creche 81,928 60,926

Interest 8,066 2,603

Investment income 33,144 -

KIddushim 38,594 10,619

Member and non-member offerings 178,266 117,624

Membership subscriptions 773,248 728,176

Other income 9,042 11,276

Weekly newsletter 15,618 18,150

Covid-19 stimulus - 16,500

Grants 6,149 100,000

1,289,552 1,206,875

EXPENDITURE

Administrative expenses (50,210) (31,559)

Advertising and marketing expenses (18,033) (12,820)

Affiliation fees (18,442) (18,222)

Audit fees (7,566) (7,032)

Depreciation and amortisation (48,581) (59,541)

Bad debts - (5,239)

Employment expense (869,830) (830,308)

Functions (55,604) (24,391)

Insurance (39,220) (37,101)

Kiddushim (63,504) (34,112)

Legal fees (2,500) (10,000)

Other expenses (42,771) (18,927)

Repairs and maintenance (72,375) (47,468)

Security (7,527) (6,591)

Utilities (14,566) (12,799)

(1,310,729) (1,156,110)

Surplus for the year (21,177) 50,765

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss

Revaluation changes for property, plant and equipment - (339,902)

Total other comprehensive income for the year - (339,902)

Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to the
association of St Kilda Hebrew Congregation Inc. (21,177) (289,137)

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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St Kilda Hebrew Congregation Inc.
ABN: 26 428 090 013

Balance Sheet
As At 31 March 2023

Note

2023

$

2022

$

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 3 431,275 932,316

Trade and other receivables 4 40,415 108,675

Other assets 6 18,620 32,686

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 490,310 1,073,677

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Financial assets 5 711,490 -

Property, plant and equipment 7 9,118,916 9,159,206

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 9,830,406 9,159,206

TOTAL ASSETS 10,320,716 10,232,883

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables 8 47,836 82,549

Employee benefits 9 213,229 158,422

Other liabilities 10 93,851 -

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 354,916 240,971

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Employee benefits 9 66 5,001

Other liabilities 10 75 75

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 141 5,076

TOTAL LIABILITIES 355,057 246,047

NET ASSETS 9,965,659 9,986,836

EQUITY

Reserves 9,196,247 9,196,247

Retained surplus 769,412 790,589

TOTAL EQUITY 9,965,659 9,986,836

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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St Kilda Hebrew Congregation Inc.
ABN: 26 428 090 013

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the Year Ended 31 March 2023

2023

Retained
Earnings

$

Asset
Realisation

Reserve

$

Total

$

Balance at 1 April 2022 790,589 9,196,247 9,986,836

Deficit for the year (21,177) - (21,177)

Balance at 31 March 2023 769,412 9,196,247 9,965,659

2022

Retained
Earnings

$

Asset
Realisation

Reserve

$

Total

$

Balance at 1 April 2021 739,824 9,536,149 10,275,973

Decrease in reserves during the year 1 - (339,902) (339,902)

Surplus for the year 50,765 - 50,765

Balance at 31 March 2022 790,589 9,196,247 9,986,836

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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St Kilda Hebrew Congregation Inc.
ABN: 26 428 090 013

Cash Flow Statement
For the Year Ended 31 March 2023

Note

2023

$

2022

$

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Receipts from members and customers 1,377,107 1,190,573

Payments to suppliers and employees (1,246,166) (1,193,500)

Receipts from  bequests and donations 46,589 36,837

Interest received 41,210 2,603

Covid-19 stimulus - 16,500

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 11 218,740 53,013

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (8,291) (233,751)

Purchase of financial assets (711,490) -

Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities (719,781) (233,751)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash  and cash equivalents held (501,041) (180,738)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 932,316 1,113,054

Cash and cash equivalents at end of financial year 3 431,275 932,316

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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St Kilda Hebrew Congregation Inc.
ABN: 26 428 090 013

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 March 2023

1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Basis of preparation

The financial statements are special purpose financial statements prepared in order to satisfy the financial
reporting requirements of the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012 and the
Associations Incorporation Reform Act (Vic) 2012. The committee has determined that the Association is not a
reporting entity.

The financial statements have been prepared on an accruals basis and are based on historic costs and do not
take into account changing money values or, except where specifically stated, current valuations of non-current
assets.

The following significant accounting policies, which are consistent with the previous period unless otherwise
stated, have been adopted in the preparation of these financial statements.

(b) Income tax

No provision for income tax has been raised as the association is exempt from income tax under Division 50 of
the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997.

(c) Property, plant and equipment

Each class of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost or fair value less, where applicable, any
accumulated depreciation.

Property

Freehold land and buildings are valued at independent valuation.

In the periods when freehold land and buildings are not subject to an independent valuation, the management
committee conduct committee's valuations to ensure the land and buildings' carrying amount is not materially
different to the fair value.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of land and buildings are credited to an asset
revaluation reserve in equity.  Decreases that offset previous increases of the same asset are recognised
against the asset revaluation reserve in equity, all other decreases are recognised in the income statement.

Any accumulated depreciation at the date of the revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of
the asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. 

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are carried at cost less, where applicable, any accumulated depreciation, except the Sefer
Torahs.

Depreciation

The depreciable amount of all fixed assets including buildings, but excluding freehold land, is depreciated over
the useful lives of the assets to the association commencing from the time the asset is held ready for use.  

6



St Kilda Hebrew Congregation Inc.
ABN: 26 428 090 013

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 March 2023

1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(d) Financial instruments

Investments and other financial assets are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs are included as
part of the initial measurement, except for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. Such assets are
subsequently measured at either amortised cost or fair value depending on their classification. Classification is
determined based on both the business model within which such assets are held and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial asset unless an accounting mismatch is being avoided.

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows have expired or have been transferred
and the company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership. When there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering part or all of a financial asset, it's carrying value is written off.

Investments

Investments includes non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities
where the company has the positive intention and ability to hold the financial asset to maturity. This category
excludes financial assets that are held for an undefined period. Investments are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate method adjusted for any principal repayments. Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired.

Impairment of financial assets

The foundation recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on financial assets which are either
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income. The measurement of the loss
allowance depends upon the company's assessment at the end of each reporting period as to whether the
financial instrument's credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, based on reasonable and
supportable information that is available, without undue cost or effort to obtain.

Where there has not been a significant increase in exposure to credit risk since initial recognition, a 12-month
expected credit loss allowance is estimated. This represents a portion of the asset's lifetime expected credit
losses that is attributable to a default event that is possible within the next 12 months. Where a financial asset
has become credit impaired or where it is determined that credit risk has increased significantly, the loss
allowance is based on the asset's lifetime expected credit losses. The amount of expected credit loss
recognised is measured on the basis of the probability weighted present value of anticipated cash shortfalls
over the life of the instrument discounted at the original effective interest rate.

For financial assets mandatory measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, the loss allowance
is recognised in other comprehensive income with a corresponding expense through profit or loss. In all other
cases, the loss allowance reduces the asset's carrying value with a corresponding expense through profit or
loss.

(e) Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the management committee reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible
and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have been impaired. If
such an indication exists, an impairment test is carried out on the asset by comparing the recoverable amount
of the asset, being the higher of the asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use, to the asset's carrying
amount. Any excess of the asset's carrying amount over its recoverable amount is recognised in the income
statement.
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St Kilda Hebrew Congregation Inc.
ABN: 26 428 090 013

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 March 2023

1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(f) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held on call with banks and other short-term highly
liquid investments.  

(g) Accounts receivable and other debtors

Accounts receivable and other debtors include amounts due from members as well as amounts receivable from
donors.  Receivables expected to be collected within 12 months of the end of the reporting period are classified
as current assets.  All other receivables are classified as non-current assets. 

(h) Employee provisions

Provision is made for the Association's liability for employee benefits arising from services rendered by
employees to the end of the reporting period. Employee benefits have been measured at the amounts expected
to be paid when the liability is settled.

(i) Revenue and other income

The incorporated association recognises revenue as follows:

Memberships & Security Levies

Membership and security levy revenue are recognised over time, when performance obligations have been
satisfied to members. 

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the performance obligation is satisfied, generally at the
time of delivery

Donations and bequests

Donations and bequests are recognised as revenue when the right to receive them is established and amounts
can be measured reliably.  Donation Income is recognised in accordance with AASB 15, if the contract is
enforceable and has sufficiently specific performance obligations. Donation Income without specific
performance obligations is recognised under AASB 1058

8



St Kilda Hebrew Congregation Inc.
ABN: 26 428 090 013

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 March 2023

1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(i) Revenue and other income

Government grants

Government grants on the condition that specified services are delivered, or conditions are fulfilled, are
considered reciprocal. Such grants are initially recognised as a liability and revenue is recognised as services
are provided or conditions fulfilled. Revenue from non-reciprocal grants is recognised when the association
obtains control of the funds.

All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST).

(j) Goods and services tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of GST
incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Tax Office (ATO).   Receivables and payables are stated
inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable.  The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to,
the ATO is included with other receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

(k) Accounts payable and other payables

Accounts payable and other payables represent the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period for
goods and services received by the association during the reporting period that remain unpaid.  The balance is
recognised as a current liability with the amounts normally paid within 30 days of recognition of the liability.

2 Critical Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts in the financial statements. Management continually evaluates its judgements and
estimates in relation to assets, liabilities, contingent liabilities, revenue and expenses. Management bases its
judgements, estimates and assumptions on historical experience and on other various factors, including expectations
of future events, management believes to be reasonable under the circumstances. The resulting accounting
judgements and estimates will seldom equal the related actual results. The judgements, estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities (refer to
the respective notes) within the next financial year are discussed below.

Estimation of useful lives of assets

The incorporated association determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation and amortisation charges
for its property, plant and equipment and finite life intangible assets. The useful lives could change significantly as a
result of technical innovations or some other event. The depreciation and amortisation charge will increase where the
useful lives are less than previously estimated lives, or technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold will be written off or written down.

Employee benefits provisions

As discussed in note 1, the liability for employee benefits expected to be settled more than 12 months from the
reporting date are recognised and measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows to be made in
respect of all employees at the reporting date. In determining the present value of the liability, estimates of attrition
rates and pay increases through promotion and inflation have been taken into account.
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St Kilda Hebrew Congregation Inc.
ABN: 26 428 090 013

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 March 2023

2023

$

2022

$

3 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash on hand 1,220 917

Cash at bank 430,055 931,399

431,275 932,316

4 Trade and Other Receivables

CURRENT

Trade receivables 83,191 151,625

Provision for impairment (48,595) (48,595)

34,596 103,030

GST receivable - 2,499

Other receivables 5,819 3,146

40,415 108,675

5 Other Financial Assets

NON-CURRENT

Hewisons - Fixed Interest Securities 711,490 -

6 Other Assets

CURRENT

Prepayments 18,620 32,686
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St Kilda Hebrew Congregation Inc.
ABN: 26 428 090 013

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 March 2023

2023

$

2022

$

7 Property, Plant and Equipment

LAND AND BUILDINGS

Opening balance 7,200,000 7,200,000

Total land 7,200,000 7,200,000

Building

At independent valuation 1,800,000 1,800,000

Accumulated depreciation (36,000) -

Total leasehold land 1,764,000 1,800,000

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Capital works in progress

At cost 18,499 14,607

Plant and equipment

At cost 203,029 203,029

Accumulated depreciation (189,477) (181,877)

Total plant and equipment 13,552 21,152

Furniture, fixture and fittings

At cost 275,397 272,797

Accumulated depreciation (154,309) (149,350)

Total furniture, fixture and fittings 121,088 123,447

Office equipment

At cost 1,799 -

Accumulated depreciation (22) -

Total office equipment 1,777 -

Total plant and equipment 154,916 159,206

Total property, plant and equipment 9,118,916 9,159,206

(a) Land & Buildings are on a consolidated title situated at 12 Charnwood Grove, St Kilda, Victoria, 3182

(b) Land & Buildings were revalued by independent valuers at 20 June 2022. The valuation reflects the current market
conditions in the property market as at the date of valuation.
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St Kilda Hebrew Congregation Inc.
ABN: 26 428 090 013

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 March 2023

8 Trade and Other Payables

CURRENT

Unsecured liabilities

Trade payables 19,042 7,835

Sundry payables and accrued expenses 11,137 13,118

GST payable 1,280 -

Other payables 16,377 61,596

17,657 61,596

47,836 82,549

9 Employee Benefits

CURRENT

Long service leave 116,738 91,106

Provision for employee benefits 96,491 67,316

213,229 158,422

NON-CURRENT

Long service leave 66 5,001

10 Other Liabilities

CURRENT

Funds held in advance 93,851 -

NON-CURRENT

Key deposits held 75 75

11 Cash Flow Information

Reconciliation of net income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Profit for the year (21,177) 50,765

Cash flows excluded from profit attributable to operating activities

Non-cash flows in profit:

 - depreciation 48,581 59,541

 - impairment of receivables - 5,239

Changes in assets and liabilities

 - (increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables 69,540 (54,741)

 - (increase)/decrease in prepayments 14,066 (13,168)

 - increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables 57,858 18,606

 - increase/(decrease) in provisions 49,872 (13,229)

Cashflow from operations 218,740 53,013
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St Kilda Hebrew Congregation Inc.
ABN: 26 428 090 013

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 March 2023

12 Capital Commitments

ASC Annexure Upgrade 219,990 -

ASC Partition 3,750 3,750

Total 223,740 3,750

13 Events Occurring After the Reporting Date

No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly affected or may
significantly affect the operations of the Association, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the
Association in future financial years.

14 Association Details

The principal place of business of the Association is:

12 Charnwood Grove

St Kilda, Victoria 3182

St Kilda Hebrew Congregation Inc. operates as an incorporated association under the Associations Incorporation
Reform Act (Vic) 2012 (Registration Number A0001256Y, registered with Consumer Affairs Victoria on 18 May 1984.

St Kilda Hebrew Congregation Inc. is registered with the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission (ACNC)
as a charity.
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St Kilda Hebrew Congregation Inc.
ABN: 26 428 090 013

Statement by the Management Committee

In accordance with a resolution of the management committee of St Kilda Hebrew Congregation Inc., the members of the
management committee declare that:  

1. the financial statements as set out on pages 2 to 13 presents a true and fair view of the financial position of St Kilda
Hebrew Congregation Inc. as at 31 March 2023 and its performance for the year ended on that date in accordance
with the accounting policies described in Note 1 to the financial statements and the requirements of the Australian
Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012 and the Associations Incorporation Reform Act (Vic) 2012; and 

2. at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that St Kilda Hebrew Congregation Inc. will be
able to pay its debts as and when they fall due.

This statement is signed for and on behalf of the management committee by:

President.........................................................................................
                                                

Treasurer .........................................................................................
                                                

Dated 
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